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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Good morning.  My

          3  name is Christine Quinn.  I'm the Chair of the City

          4  Council's Health Committee.  We're going to get this

          5  hearing started.  I want to apologize.  Other

          6  Council members will be in and out. Next door is a

          7  hearing on, an oversight hearing on the Commission,

          8  which name I cannot recall, because, apparently, a

          9  lot of us have never heard of it before, but the

         10  Commission that released Senator Velella a little on

         11  the early side.  So many people are in there, and

         12  there's also some hearings going on across the

         13  street, so people will be in and out.

         14                 Today the Council is having an

         15  oversight hearing on the issue of sexual assault

         16  screenings in health clinics in our city.  We're

         17  also going to be voting on a resolution relating to

         18  Reso. 0593, a resolution introduced by Minority

         19  Leader Jimmy Oddo, a resolution recognizing October

         20  12 to 20th as National Bone and Joint Decade

         21  Awareness Week, and we'll be voting on that later.

         22                 On the issue of the oversight hearing

         23  on sexual assault, this hearing is one of a series

         24  of hearings that the Council is having on the issue

         25  of sexual assault. And based on the very smart
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          2  suggestion of the New York City Alliance Against

          3  Sexual Assault, the Council is trying to look more

          4  in detail and comprehensively at the issue of rape

          5  and sexual assaults in our city.  So, over the

          6  course of the next few months, different committees

          7  will be looking at this issue under their rubrics

          8  and trying to help identify forward- moving agenda

          9  items and steps that the Council and the City can

         10  take to, of course, prevent sexual assault and, of

         11  course, look at it from a police perspective.  But

         12  also from other committees' views to see how we can

         13  better treat and serve people who have been the

         14  victims of sexual assault.

         15                 I very much want to thank Harriet

         16  LaSalle and the Alliance for asking the Council to

         17  do these hearings and in being kind enough to

         18  include us in the work that they, the very, very

         19  important work that they and so many other advocates

         20  are doing.

         21                 You know, there has been a lot of

         22  discussion, thanks to the Alliance and others, in

         23  the recent past about hospitals and ERs and our

         24  emergency rooms and hospitals doing the right thing

         25  when someone comes in their door and they identify
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          2  as a victim of rape or sexual assault.  We have been

          3  a part of those discussions in this Committee.     Today

          4  we wanted to look at another issue as it relates to

          5  health care and sexual assault, and it's important

          6  to note that in and of itself, talking about sexual

          7  assault from the health care perspective is not

          8  always done and is frequently overlooked and, all

          9  too frequently, this issue is only looked at through

         10  the parameters of law enforcement, which is

         11  critically important, but not in any way, shape or

         12  form the only issue.

         13                 Today we want to explore with the

         14  Department of Health and the Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation the issue of our city's clinics and what

         16  happens when a woman goes to a clinic for medical

         17  care and does not identify as a victim of rape or

         18  sexual assault.  Because the reality is that only,

         19  we believe, around 5% of those who are sexually

         20  assaulted will ever report that information to the

         21  police, and only about 42% of people who are ever

         22  sexually assaulted, who are sexually assaulted will

         23  ever tell anyone. So the vast majority of victims do

         24  not appear in front of medical providers and

         25  disclose that information.  So we need, those of us
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          2  who are part of our public health infrastructure, to

          3  make sure that we are looking for that unfortunate

          4  reality of life in New York City when it is not told

          5  to us.

          6                 So, today we want to explore what

          7  happens when a woman goes into a city clinic, are

          8  those staff people trained to look for telltale

          9  signs that the woman may have been the victim of a

         10  sexual assault?  What type of training do they have?

         11    What type of -- if they do identify it, what

         12  follow- up work do they do with the women and once

         13  this, the fact that someone has been the victim of

         14  sexual assault has been identified, is there a

         15  protocol in place to help deal with the long- term

         16  physical and psychological effects that that crime

         17  is going to have on that person.  We hope today's

         18  hearing will be the first step in a longer- term

         19  agenda to figuring out how to better serve survivors

         20  of rape and sexual assault in our city clinics.

         21                 I'm sure we will identify today, I

         22  have no doubt, that we are not doing enough.  But

         23  the point of today's hearing is not to be finger

         24  pointing or accusatory to the Department of Health

         25  or the Health and Hospitals Corporation, but in
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          2  better understanding what we're not doing, we'll be

          3  able to come together and improve what we're doing

          4  in our clinics, because what we're talking about

          5  today is in many ways more challenging than when we

          6  talk about our emergency rooms because, in most of

          7  those situations, it's much more likely that the

          8  individual is identifying as a victim.  So I hope

          9  that today is our first step towards really

         10  expanding and adding this, in some ways, extra

         11  responsibility to those who work in our city's

         12  clinics.

         13                 As I said, we're going to hear today

         14  first from the Health and Hospitals Corporation and

         15  then from the Department of Health and then from a

         16  series of other advocates and service providers.

         17                 I do want to say, with a certain

         18  degree of disappointment, a tremendous degree of

         19  disappointment, that the Greater New York Hospital

         20  Associations has declined to appear today.  I am

         21  going to be following up with them, because I am

         22  incredibly -- actually, their representative called

         23  me.  They said they would have preferred to have had

         24  private discussions with advocates as opposed to a

         25  hearing, appearing in a public hearing context.  And
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          2  I agree that private discussions are very, very

          3  useful.  Greater New York has known for months we

          4  were going to have this hearing. They had ample time

          5  to ask us to set up that meeting and there will be

          6  plenty of time for more meetings and discussions

          7  afterwards.

          8                 Today's hearing is not about saying

          9  you, X hospital, are bad in your clinics, you're not

         10  doing it right, it was to try to build a greater

         11  alliance between hospitals, clinics, health care

         12  providers, the Council and advocates for people who

         13  have been the victims of sexual assault.  So I fail

         14  to understand why they have chosen not to be part of

         15  that partnership, and I hope they will remedy that

         16  decision very clearly, because it certainly gives me

         17  tremendous concern about what services their clinics

         18  are or are not giving, if they weren't even willing

         19  to appear today.

         20                 That said, I want to say we've been

         21  joined by members of the Health Committee, Council

         22  Member Helen Sears from Quinn -- from Queens,

         23  Council Member Al Vann from Brooklyn and Council

         24  Member Philip Reed from Manhattan.

         25                 That said, I'm going to call up the
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          2  first panel, Van Dunn from the New York City Health

          3  and Hospitals Corporation, Deborah Kaplan from DOH

          4  and Susan Blank, also from DOH.  And DOH actually,

          5  I'm sorry, is here to answer questions.  They're not

          6  delivering testimony, but there will certainly be

          7  questions.  They'll have a lot to say.  We'll have

          8  Health and Hospitals Corporation go first.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 DR. DUNN:  Good morning, Chairperson

         11  Quinn, Council Members Sears, Vann and Reed.  My

         12  name is Van Dunn. I'm the Senior Vice- President for

         13  Medical and Professional Affairs at New York City

         14  Health and Hospitals Corporation. I am pleased to

         15  have the opportunity to provide testimony on Health

         16  and Hospitals' programs to treat victims of rape and

         17  sexual assault.

         18                 We have enhanced our medical and

         19  Social Services to meet the needs of rape/sexual

         20  assault victims in accordance with the Sexual

         21  Assault Reform Act of 2000.  The Act requires the

         22  Commissioner of the New York State Department of

         23  Health to develop programs to address sexual assault

         24  and designate hospitals in the State as sites of 24

         25  hour Sexual Assault Forensic Examiner programs.
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          2  Every hospital in New York State must ensure that

          3  all victims of rape or sexual assault, who present

          4  to the hospital, are provided with care that is

          5  comprehensive, consistent with current standards of

          6  practice.  To be eligible for designation by the New

          7  York State Department of Health as a SAFE program

          8  site, the hospital has to formally establish a

          9  program and demonstrate that they meet all the

         10  requirements set forth in the law and other program

         11  standards and requirements developed by the New York

         12  State Department of Health in conjunction with the

         13  New York State Division of Criminal Justice

         14  Services.

         15                 The SAFE program is designated to

         16  meet the needs of victims of sexual assault by

         17  providing compassionate, timely medical care that is

         18  culturally sensitive, with examinations conducted by

         19  specially- trained forensic examiners that provide

         20  emotional support and reduce further trauma to the

         21  victim.  The requirements for a SAFE program

         22  include:

         23                 The provision of quality medical care

         24  provided to the victim in a private setting,

         25  including evaluation, treatment, referral and
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          2  follow- up;

          3                 Interdisciplinary collaboration

          4  between the hospital SAFE program staff, local law

          5  enforcement, the District Attorney's office, Rape

          6  Crisis Center staff and other rape and sexual

          7  assault victims' services organization;

          8                 Forensic examiners to ensure that the

          9  physical evidence collected during the exam is

         10  safely and accurately documented and preserved for

         11  future law enforcement purposes.  Improved evidence

         12  collection may lead to increased rates of

         13  identification, prosecution and conviction of sexual

         14  assault perpetrators.  SAFE program staff can also

         15  provide expert testimony, if necessary, in court

         16  proceedings; and

         17                 Standardized data regarding the

         18  incidence of sexual assault victims seeking

         19  treatment in the hospital's emergency room.

         20                 In addition to the above

         21  requirements, hospitals with an established SAFE

         22  program can apply for designation as a SAFE Center

         23  of Excellence by demonstrating that they

         24  continuously meet the following additional

         25  requirements:
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          2                 Providing treatment to a certain

          3  minimum number of rape/sexual assault victims at

          4  each facility each year;

          5                 Having forensic on call 24 hours a

          6  day, seven days a week.  Sexual assault forensic

          7  examiners must hold a professional degree.  Complete

          8  an intensive 40- hour didactic and clinical training

          9  program approved by the New York City Department of

         10  Health and be recertified every three years;

         11                 Having an appropriately equipped

         12  private room;

         13                 Providing access to shower and clean

         14  clothing;

         15                 Having emergency contraception and

         16  prophylaxis on site to treat the patient if there is

         17  a potential for pregnancy or transmission of

         18  sexually transmitted diseases, HIV and Hepatitis B;

         19                 Maintaining a well- functioning, on-

         20  call and back- up system to ensure that rape victim

         21  is met by a forensic examiner within 60 minutes of

         22  arrival to the hospital;

         23                 Ensuring that a Rape Crisis Advocate

         24  is immediately available to offer services to the

         25  patient; and
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          2                 Having replacement clothing available

          3  for the victim.

          4                 North Central Bronx was the first

          5  hospital in the State to receive SAFE program Center

          6  of Excellence designation.  That's an HHC facility.

          7  Kings County Hospital in Brooklyn was the second HHC

          8  facility to receive the SAFE program Center of

          9  Excellence designation.  Currently, Elmhurst

         10  Hospital Center in Queens and Woodhull Hospital

         11  Medical and Mental Health Center in Brooklyn have

         12  submitted applications to be designated as Centers

         13  of Excellence. Other HHC facilities, Lincoln,

         14  Harlem, Bellevue and Metropolitan in Coney Island

         15  are preparing to submit applications for

         16  designation.

         17                 In response to the disproportionately

         18  high incidence of rape in the Bronx, Mayor Bloomberg

         19  announced in February of this year the creation of a

         20  Sexual Assault Response Team, or SART as we call it,

         21  that provides state of- the- art forensic and

         22  counseling services 24 hours a day, seven days a

         23  week, to every sexual assault victim seeking

         24  treatment at Jacobi Medical Center, Lincoln Medical

         25  and Mental Health Center and North Central Bronx
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          2  Hospital.  The team is composed of a multi-

          3  disciplinary group of sexual assault forensic

          4  examiners that include doctors, nurses and other

          5  clinical staff, trained Rape Crisis Advocates.  The

          6  SART team responds within 60 minutes of receiving a

          7  call from any of these hospitals.  The Rape Crisis

          8  Advocates respond with 30 minutes.

          9                 Communication and training are

         10  critical to the success of the SART team.  The SART

         11  team meets monthly with the Mayor's Office of

         12  Criminal Justice Coordinator and work

         13  collaboratively to coordinate actions among the

         14  three hospitals, the New York City Police Department

         15  and the Bronx District Attorney's Office.

         16                 The Bronx SART team's funding is

         17  supported in part by a $400,000 grant from the

         18  United States Department of Justice and the New York

         19  State Department of Criminal Justice Services.  In

         20  addition, the hospitals' Auxiliary has been very

         21  supportive of the program.  They have raised money

         22  to purchase clothing, toiletries for the victims and

         23  other items to help support the program.  If this

         24  model proves to be successful, we would replicate it

         25  at the other HHC facilities.
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          2                 Health and Hospitals Corporation is

          3  committed to providing quality state- of- the- art

          4  forensic medical counseling and support service to

          5  every sexual assault victim seeking care at our

          6  facilities.  Our goal is within one hour or arrival,

          7  victims will be seen by a SAFE- trained provider and

          8  Rape Crisis Advocates, have a thorough medical exam,

          9  receive a forensic exam to collect evidence, receive

         10  counseling designated to meet their needs and ensure

         11  provision of appropriate Social Services.

         12                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         13  provide testimony and I'll be happy to answer any

         14  question you might have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         16  want to say we've also been joined by Council Member

         17  Kendall Stewart, a member of the Committee from

         18  Brooklyn.  Before we do questions, we are going to

         19  have a vote on the resolution. It's Resolution 593

         20  introduced by Council Members Oddo, Baez, Barron,

         21  Clarke, Comrie, Fidler, Gennaro, Gentile, Gonzalez,

         22  Jackson, McMahon, Nelson, Quinn, Recchia, Reed,

         23  Sanders, Vann and Lanza.  It's Reso. No. 593.  It's

         24  a resolution recognizing October 12th to 20th, 2004,

         25  as National Bone and Joint Decade Awareness Week and
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          2  encouraging the promotion of education, greater

          3  awareness of a disease which I cannot pronounce,

          4  Fibrodysplasia Ossificans Progressiva, in the City

          5  of New York.  One of the medical professionals could

          6  re- pronounce that, I'm sure, better for the record.

          7    The Clerk will call the roll and, if we could,

          8  leave the roll open, please.

          9                 THE CLERK:  Quinn.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I vote aye.

         11                 THE CLERK:  Reed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Aye.  But I

         13  would lie to have Dr. Dunn pronounce that for us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Dr. Stewart might

         15  even be able to.

         16                 DR. DUNN:  Fibrodysplasia.

         17                 THE CLERK:  Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

         19                 THE CLERK:  Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Aye.

         21                 THE CLERK:  Vann.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye.

         23                 THE CLERK:  By a vote of five in the

         24  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         25  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council members,
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          2  please sign the Committee report, and the roll will

          3  be held open by request of the Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          5  think a lot of your testimony was about what you do

          6  in the emergency rooms.  I think my office has tried

          7  to made it clear that the topic of this hearing was

          8  actually -- though it is appreciated, all that HHC

          9  does, sincerely, in the emergency rooms, and I think

         10  we have some outstanding models of ER responses

         11  within the Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         12  Certainly, things I think that some of the private

         13  hospitals in the City could note and learn from.

         14  That said, I'm a little concerned because I think it

         15  was clear that this hearing was about clinics, which

         16  I recognize is a, I don't want to say new and

         17  different, but not what we typically talk about and

         18  that we are going into territory where there may not

         19  be as much for you to tell us in written testimony.

         20  And that's okay, that's why we're having this

         21  hearing, actually, is because there isn't as much to

         22  tell, by no fault particularly of HHC, you know,

         23  because that is how it has been.  I'm a little

         24  distressed, though, that you didn't even choose to

         25  recognize that the topic was, in fact, not what you
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          2  testified on.

          3                 Could you tell us with what you went

          4  through just now in your testimony, what in here --

          5  what I thought I took from what you said was that

          6  most of what you referenced happens in the emergency

          7  rooms, but I may have misunderstood that.  So take

          8  us through, with as much and great detail as

          9  possible, what in your testimony is an example of a

         10  service that HHC would give at a clinic, and my

         11  particular concern is what is -- let's forget your

         12  testimony for a second. We'll come back to that.

         13  Let's forget your testimony for a second.  So

         14  somebody comes into a clinic, an HHC- run clinic,

         15  and he or she does not say, "I'm here because I was

         16  sexually assaulted."  What -- take us through -- but

         17  they're coming in with, to deal with a condition or

         18  symptoms or problems that would -- could have

         19  related from having been raped or sexually

         20  assaulted.  Take me through what would happen to

         21  that man or woman when they came in that might lead

         22  the staff to believe the person was raped or

         23  sexually assaulted. And then, once that bell went

         24  off, so to speak, what would the staff do then.  So

         25  it's kind of a two- parter.  When they come in, how
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          2  might we get to the bell and then, when we got to

          3  the bell, what would happen.

          4                 DR. DUNN:  Well, to kind of give you

          5  some background, I didn't talk about screening for

          6  sexual assault because we don't do it.  We don't

          7  have a protocol that everyone who comes in gets

          8  screened, and I didn't want to mislead the Council

          9  about what we provide.  One of the things I will say

         10  that we do, which I think is important, it also

         11  gives us information to focus our clinical

         12  assessment after we've talked about the patient

         13  coming into the facility, is that everyone who comes

         14  into not only in our emergency room but in our

         15  outpatient clinics gets screened for domestic

         16  violence.  Any person over the age of 16 that comes

         17  in, we have --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Age of what?

         19                 DR. DUNN:  Sixteen.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         21                 DR. DUNN:  We have everyone gets

         22  questioned about domestic violence.  Specifically,

         23  is there anyone at home that you're afraid of that

         24  might hurt you, would you like to see a social

         25  worker to talk about issues that may be related to
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          2  your living environment, are you afraid that there

          3  is someone who's going to hurt you.  And we use that

          4  information to try to focus our attention on other

          5  non clinical issues that might occur.

          6                 In addition, one of the things we

          7  also do, even though it's in the emergency room when

          8  we have a victim of rape/sexual assault, we really

          9  try to get them to open up and talk about it and to

         10  try to find if there were any past sexual assault or

         11  rape episodes.  And we try to do that to try to see

         12  if we can provide, you know, a lot of follow- up in

         13  counseling.  Because we find when they come in,

         14  unless they really have a good relationship with

         15  their provider and they trust their provider,

         16  they're reluctant to provide information.  So you

         17  try to really gain their confidence that you're

         18  there to help them and you also, when they come in

         19  and they may have multiple somatic complaints, that

         20  it may not be a physical reason why they're feeling

         21  this way, that it may be post- traumatic stress from

         22  a sexual assault or rape they've never talked about.

         23

         24                 So the provider's role is when

         25  they're evaluating a patient is to really do a
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          2  thorough examination. A throughout examination is

          3  not just doing a physical exam, but talking to the

          4  patient, getting a history of their present illness

          5  and also doing a thorough review of systems. As part

          6  of the review of systems, you talk about previous

          7  episodes that might have occurred, so you ask open-

          8  ended questions to try to get as much information

          9  from the patient without trying to just say, "Have

         10  you ever been raped or sexually assaulted", because

         11  they may be not at that time willing to give that

         12  answer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let's go back a

         14  second to the domestic violence screening.  So every

         15  person who comes into an HHC facility --

         16                 DR. DUNN:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sixteen or over,

         18  man or woman --

         19                 DR. DUNN:  Uh- huh.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Has there ever

         21  been, and again this is not accusatory, I mean, it's

         22  really trying to explore places we may,

         23  unfortunately, need to go, has there ever been

         24  discussion within the Corporation about whether

         25  there should be a similar type of thing added as it
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          2  relates to rape or sexual assault?

          3                 DR. DUNN:  Well, the answer is no,

          4  and let me try to explain why the answer is no.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

          6                 DR. DUNN:  One of the things that we

          7  try to do, is we try to do things that are evidence-

          8  based, that there is a lot of information out there,

          9  that by doing something you gain some knowledge to

         10  help the patient move forward.  And there's a lot of

         11  information out there about detecting domestic

         12  violence and removing the victim from the

         13  circumstance to reduce mortality and the morbidity

         14  associated with domestic violence.  We don't know of

         15  a tool that's out there that will give us the same

         16  information with sexual assault.  There's been some

         17  preliminary research looking at who are potential

         18  victims of sexual assault who might not have talked

         19  to anyone about it, but it really comes down to

         20  having a good relationship with the provider and

         21  trying to get them to open up, rather than having a

         22  pointed question.

         23                 So from our standpoint, we're always

         24  looking to improve the delivery of services that we

         25  have, and we don't focus on just providing medical
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          2  services, but the full range of services.  So we're

          3  open to recommendations and collaborations on trying

          4  to provide the best service to victims of

          5  rape/sexual assault.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, that's

          7  great, and maybe what we should, as one follow- up

          8  to this hearing, I'm sure there will be more than

          9  that, maybe if you, John or whoever, could let us

         10  know who the best folks at HHC to sit down with,

         11  with some of the folks, the advocates, to try to

         12  explore what that tool could be, and maybe -- and

         13  there may be examples from other cities.  I don't

         14  know.  That's really something we can all look into,

         15  and maybe we should think about if we aren't able to

         16  come up with a tool along the lines of the DV one

         17  you guys have or that we could then work at doing a

         18  pilot of that in the Bronx, perhaps, or somewhere.

         19  I was just saying that given the unfortunately high

         20  numbers there.

         21                 Let me ask another question.  If

         22  someone comes in to the clinic, a clinic, and has,

         23  you know, comes in looking for a gynecological exam

         24  and has tearing or things that could be associated

         25  with rape or sexual assault, is there something --
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          2  so I get that there's nothing automatic that

          3  happens.  Is there some tool or questions or

          4  something that gets triggered if there is a

          5  condition or a symptom that is likely -- not the

          6  only reason someone could have it, but likely to

          7  have been associated with that type of a crime?

          8                 DR. DUNN:  If your question is, is

          9  there a specific protocol for someone who comes in,

         10  if you suspect that there has been rape/sexual

         11  assaults --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         13                 DR. DUNN:  -- The answer is no.  It's

         14  basically the clinical judgment of the provider,

         15  which could be the nurse, the physician or, if at

         16  the exam, the patient's referred to Social Services.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Now, what type of

         18   -- so that's, I think we might even be the -- well,

         19  we'll figure ut which is the better place to start

         20  and follow-up, but what type -- you talked about the

         21  importance of the provider/patient relationship and,

         22  obviously, that's critical, what type of training is

         23  there for the staff to know, to be able to identify

         24  what the answer really is that the patient is saying

         25  when they're not actually just saying, "Yes, I was,
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          2  you know, raped or sexually assaulted"?  What type

          3  of training is there, and is there greater or more

          4  specific training, say, for the gynecological staff

          5  in clinics?

          6                 DR. DUNN:  I can tell you from the

          7  standpoint of training because of our goal is to

          8  make sure that every one of our facilities is a SAFE

          9  program in that we've already had training so far

         10  for over 500 providers; nurses, physicians, social

         11  workers, around the requirements to be a SAFE

         12  examiner.  So that we have folks who are trained and

         13  knowledgeable it.

         14                 The other thing that we have done,

         15  which is part of our real goal in working with

         16  Commissioner Jimenez and her staff at the Office to

         17  prevent domestic violence, is have mandatory

         18  training for our staff, not just for our physicians

         19  but for all staff, about being able to recognize and

         20  try to prevent domestic violence and part of that is

         21  rape/sexual assault.  In addition, we have published

         22  a curriculum that talks about the prevention of

         23  family violence in looking at child abuse, elder

         24  abuse, domestic violence and also looking at

         25  rape/sexual assault.  So we are taking steps to
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          2  educate our providers about the important public

          3  health needs that we need to meet, because

          4  rape/sexual assault is a public health emergency,

          5  and we need to do everything we can to reduce that

          6  or eliminate it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It would be great

          8  if we could get -- I'd love to take a look at those

          9  training materials in general but for the components

         10  of them that deal with rape and sexual assault.

         11                 You were saying that the training

         12  that -- so do all of the clinic staff and the DTC

         13  staffs get trained?

         14                 DR. DUNN:  Yes, we have mandatory

         15  training and mandatory training means that every new

         16  provider has to go through the training and every

         17  year there is mandated updates.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  How long is the

         19  initial and what is the update?

         20                 DR. DUNN:  We try to make it easy for

         21  the providers to do, so it's right now about an

         22  hour.  We've been working very, very closely with,

         23  as I said, Commissioner Jimenez and the Office of

         24  Domestic Violence to really make it longer and have

         25  more patient vignettes so that you can learn from
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          2  cases on how to appropriately treat patients.  And

          3  so we could easily incorporate the clinical

          4  vignettes to deal with rape/sexual assault.  You

          5  know, we are not adverse to --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Clearly.

          7                 DR. DUNN:  -- To doing this, because

          8  it's good for the patients.  Our goal is to provide

          9  excellent care to the patients who come into our

         10  facilities and not just deal with their current

         11  complaints, but to make sure that their wellbeing as

         12  an individual, as a whole person is taken care of.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I'm going to have

         14  more questions, but I'll now call on my colleagues.

         15  HHC has to leave by -- HHC like he's not a person,

         16  like he's a -- Dr. Dunn has to leave at -- God, I

         17  can't talk today.  I was going to say you had to

         18  leave at HHC -- has to leave at 11 so if we could

         19  start for this round with questions for him and then

         20  we can do DOH after that, just so we can make sure

         21  folks have all the time that they need.  Council

         22  Member Reed?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair. Good morning, Dr. Dunn and others that

         25  are testifying.  I'm just curious, you commented on
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          2  rape statistics by borough and you said that the

          3  Bronx had the highest rate.  In our briefing paper

          4  we talk about 1300 and some odd -- 1,348 forcible

          5  rapes in fiscal year '04.  Could you break down the

          6  boroughs?  Do you have that information?

          7                 DR. DUNN:  Well, I don't have the

          8  boroughs. I can tell you what we see at HHC.  We see

          9  about a thousand rape/sexual assaults a year.  We

         10  see that the most cases are in the Bronx and in

         11  Brooklyn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And that's

         13  disproportionately compared to the population?

         14                 DR. DUNN:  We think it's

         15  disproportionate to the population.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Care to

         17  speculate on why?

         18                 DR. DUNN:  No, I do not have --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair. I think it's an important issue.  I

         21  mean, I think it's obviously economics.  I mean,

         22  it's unforgivable and unacceptable, but there's a

         23  lot of abuse that we're seeing in certainly the

         24  communities that I represent.  I think, without

         25  putting my colleagues on the Council on the spot, I
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          2  do think we also need to look at those issues.  I

          3  think it's wise or proactive, perhaps.  Is that why

          4  you started your clinics in the Bronx, Dr. Dunn?

          5                 DR. DUNN:  Yes, we did.  We did.  We

          6  were trying to meet the needs and, as I said, we're

          7  doing this as model to see how it works.  We really

          8  want to provide good medical care but also good

          9  social support and follow- up, because the concern

         10  is always what happens after the event and the

         11  concern about post- traumatic stress, which is

         12  really important.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  The concern

         14  that I have, and I'm listening and I'm hearing what

         15  the Chair asked about the clinics, but in terms of

         16  being proactive with especially young, especially

         17  women and counseling them, even if there has not

         18  been an incident, that if, in fact, that does

         19  happen.  Unfortunately -- there is no shame.  There

         20  are these programs.  So rather than putting

         21  excellent things in place after the fact, to develop

         22  that awareness.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you,

         24  Council Member Reed.  I just want to say, I

         25  completely agree with you and I actually think that
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          2  the information about the domestic violence

          3  screenings that are going on as a matter of course,

          4  which is really excellent.  I really think you

          5  should be completely -- HHC applauded by that.  I

          6  think it's a really good thing for us to sit down

          7  and look at.  It may actually provide us a great

          8  opportunity to help people who aren't coming forward

          9  but, also, as Council Member Reed said, get

         10  information into people's heads which could be

         11  helpful and empowering before and then, hopefully,

         12  it will never be needed, but it will be there.

         13                 Council Member Sears and then Council

         14  Member Stewart.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair.  Before I ask my question, I just say

         17  that I agree with you about the Greater New York

         18  Hospital Association.

         19  Many, many years ago this issue would never have

         20  been discussed.  And to think that they would have

         21  to discuss this behind closed doors, I think, is

         22  pretty absurd when it's an absolutely public and

         23  critical issue.  So I think, quite frankly, they

         24  should be ashamed of themselves.

         25                 Dr. Van Dunn, I just have a few very
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          2  simple questions.  One, and you may have done it and

          3  I may have missed it, but what is the difference

          4  between the SAFE program Centers of Excellence and

          5  the Rape Crisis Centers, since they're dealing with

          6  the same issue?

          7                 DR. DUNN:  Well, the SAFE programs

          8  are geared towards providing the medical services

          9  and forensic examinations.  One of the things with

         10  the SAFE program is to collect information that

         11  could be used in the case of prosecution of the

         12  perpetrator of the crime and, also, to provide

         13  really good clinical services in a timely manner,

         14  and provide it in a manner that the victim feels

         15  safe and secure and that there is support when the

         16  victim has to leave and go home.  So it really is a

         17  much more comprehensive than the Rape Crisis

         18  Centers.  Rape Crisis Centers are very important

         19  from the standpoint of the support services they

         20  provide to the victims.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But no medical

         22  services?

         23                 DR. DUNN:  What they do is work in

         24  collaboration with medical providers to make sure

         25  that if a victim needs follow- up medical care, that
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          2  they get them the services that they need, but they

          3  really provide just tremendous support for Social

          4  Services, for legal services, i.e. They provide

          5  services that medical providers cannot do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Do you keep

          7  some kind of records in the HHC as to the difference

          8  in those that come to the Rape Crisis Centers and

          9  those that are treated at the Centers for

         10  Excellence?  Because you have three, I think, Rape

         11  Crisis -- the SAFE programs.  Do you treat more at

         12  those SAFE programs than you do at the Crisis

         13  Centers or vice- versa?

         14                 DR. DUNN:  The SAFE programs are just

         15  now starting up.  Rape/sexual assault victims can go

         16  to any hospital in the City.  What the goal is, by

         17  having the SAFE programs, is that you are providing

         18  state- of- the- art care to these victims in

         19  collaboration with the support that they need to

         20  survive the trauma of the incident.  So the SAFE

         21  programs are different than the Rape Crisis Centers.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I'm gathering.

         23    That's why I basically asked that question.

         24                 Next one is when you -- the staff

         25  that you train, and you stated they could be RNs or
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          2  nurse practitioners, et cetera, do you select who

          3  serves in that responsibility and gives them the

          4  training?  Are they volunteers from those areas that

          5  also choose to add this additional responsibility?

          6                 DR. DUNN:  What we try to do --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  How do you

          8  select the staff is what I'm asking.

          9                 DR. DUNN:  We try to select staff

         10  that want to do it, because we want people who

         11  really feel that they're going to be an advocate for

         12  the victim when the victim comes in, and we try to

         13  get staff that will do this, that that's their major

         14  responsibility.  Because it's not spending five, ten

         15  or 15 minutes with the patient, you're talking about

         16  spending three, four, five hours with the victim, so

         17  you really need to have someone who can focus on the

         18  victim rather than having to do other things.  So we

         19  really try to get staff that are motivated to do

         20  this and understand that this is their priority and

         21  not other clinical services.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But currently,

         23  are they sharing their responsibilities or are those

         24  that you train absolutely dedicated?

         25                 DR. DUNN:  They're absolutely
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          2  dedicated. That's one of the reasons we put together

          3  the SART team in the Bronx.  They are called in and

          4  that's all they do, they don't do anything else.  So

          5  we're not trying to take emergency room staff that

          6  are seeing someone with cardiac arrest or comes in

          7  with a cold.  We're taking people who are dedicated

          8  to that program.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  In terms of

         10  the other languages that are spoken, particularly

         11  among the Latinos and Spanish, there is an

         12  overwhelming stigma within the Latino community for

         13  anyone to come forward and say they were raped.

         14  There are some organizations out there like Safe

         15  Horizons that are beginning to concentrate on this.

         16  Do you have an affiliation, do you work with them --

         17                 DR. DUNN:  Yes, we do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- In that

         19  area?

         20                 DR. DUNN:  As part of our partnership

         21  around trying to prevent domestic violence, we work

         22  very closely with Safe Horizons.  In fact, Safe

         23  Horizons is in three of our facilities providing

         24  support services.  So we think very highly of Safe

         25  Horizons and we're very happy that we have a close
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          2  corroborative effort.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  Just

          4  one more question.  In the Times this past weekend

          5  was a story of rape against men and boys.  How much

          6  attention is that given, and does the Health and

          7  Hospitals Corporation, how do they work with that?

          8  And the reason I ask is because the trauma due to

          9  such things, as evidenced by your own testimony, is

         10  such and in prison, hopefully, they're coming out.

         11  Those victims and those boys that have been raped,

         12  what is there, what assistance do you give them?

         13  Because they're coming out into society and they're

         14  coming out in the most traumatized way.  Does the

         15  Health and Hospitals Corporation work with that?

         16  Would it fall mostly to Elmhurst Hospital if they

         17  are at Rikers Island?

         18                 DR. DUNN:  What we do is the

         19  correctional health service is provided now by the

         20  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  We work

         21  collaborative with them, and anyone who's being

         22  released that needs to have follow- up at an HHC

         23  facility, we work very closely with them to make

         24  sure they get into the care that they need.  Our

         25  programs are designed so that we can take care of
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          2  males and females and that we don't try to have a

          3  gender specific program.  We really want to make

          4  sure that anyone who is a victim and, as you point

          5  out rightly, there are male victims of rape and

          6  sexual assault and they need to receive the same

          7  compassionate, dedicated and quality health service

          8  that anyone would receive in that situation.  So we

          9  try to provide that.  As I said, we try to work very

         10  closely with the Department of Health that anyone

         11  who is being released who needs to have follow- up

         12  care or treatment, that they're very welcome at any

         13  of our facilities.  So we try to get it close to

         14  where they're going to be living once they have been

         15  released.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.  I

         17  was going to ask you another question, but I think

         18  it's really directed for the Department of

         19  Corrections, so I'll save it for them.  Thank you

         20  very much.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  Just

         22  before I call on Kendall Stewart, I just want to say

         23  that the Health Committee staff, who is Chris

         24  Winward Read (phonetic), which is great, actually,

         25  on the internet found from the Wisconsin Coalition
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          2  Against Sexual Assault a screening tool that they

          3  use, four or five questions for screening teens for

          4  rape and sexual assault, not those that say that

          5  they've been raped or sexually assaulted, but kind

          6  of general, along the lines of what you were

          7  mentioning with domestic violence.  At first blush

          8  in some of the conversations with the advocates,

          9  they think it is a good example to start working off

         10  of.  So we will forward this to you, and it

         11  certainly gives us a place to start.  I'll also

         12  share it with the Committee members as well.

         13                 Dr. Kendall Stewart had a question

         14  for HHC and then we'll move over for the Department

         15  of Health.   We may get you out of here right on

         16  time, which is wildly uncharacteristic, and I would

         17  encourage no one to get used to it.

         18                 DR. DUNN:  I have a roomful of

         19  pharmacists and physicians waiting for me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Dr. Kendall

         21  Stewart and then I have one quick, quick question.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

         24  morning.

         25                 DR. DUNN:  Good morning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  From your

          3  testimony I didn't hear you talk about what is the

          4  threshold before you would do a referral or include

          5  other decision makers?

          6                 DR. DUNN:  Any time there is a case

          7  of rape/sexual assault, it's a multi- disciplinary

          8  team approach.  It's not just the physician or the

          9  nurse.  It includes Social Services, and so we try

         10  to take care of the patient as a whole and not just

         11  focus on the rape and the medical care, because the

         12  mental health services and the support services are

         13  equally as important.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So what

         15  you're saying is that if there is any inkling that

         16  there might have been an assault, you refer for

         17  counseling?

         18                 DR. DUNN:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         20                 DR. DUNN:  What we try to do, which

         21  is really important, is get the trust of the

         22  patient, because it sometimes is very difficult for

         23  them to talk about it, so you really want to try to

         24  match them up with a provider who is culturally

         25  sensitive to their culture and someone who can speak
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          2  their language.  We try to remove barriers for them

          3  to talk about what has happened in their life.  And

          4  then you try to match them with a provider that they

          5  might need. They might want to talk to just a social

          6  worker, they may feel comfortable in talking to a

          7  mental health worker.  So you really try to gear the

          8  services that the patient needs rather than what you

          9  think the patient needs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What about

         11  economics component of the SAFE program?  Is there

         12  one? Because sometimes victims don't want to talk

         13  about it, because they know the sole provider is

         14  that person who might be the aggressor, you know,

         15  the person who created the problem and they don't

         16  want to turn them in.  What kind of economic thing

         17  that you have to help?

         18                 DR. DUNN:  Well, that's the important

         19  thing of having the Rape Counsel Advocate.  You have

         20  a non hospital person who can come in and talk to

         21  them, who understands what they're going through,

         22  and that's someone outside of, out of the

         23  Department, out of the hospital.  And then through

         24  Social Services, if there needs for a place for them

         25  to stay or they need clothes or they need monetary
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          2  funds to support themselves during this time,

          3  because you don't want them to go back into the same

          4  situation, it's our role to work with the social

          5  support agencies out there who do this day in and

          6  day out and provide, I think, outstanding services

          7  to rape/sexual assault victims.  So it's our

          8  responsibility to work closely with community- based

          9  organizations that can augment the services that we

         10  provide.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         12                 DR. DUNN:  To answer your question,

         13  it's not a matter of money, it's trying to find the

         14  resources that are out there to help the individual,

         15  and that's what we see as our goal, that we would

         16  never allow someone to return to an unsafe

         17  environment or who feels that they have no place to

         18  go, without releasing them from the emergency room

         19  or, if they're in a clinic and they're concerned

         20  about going back to a situation where they could be

         21  raped or sexually assaulted, we would not allow them

         22  to do that.  We would work with agencies like Safe

         23  Horizons, with the Rape Crisis Centers to get them

         24  the support services they need to continue to do

         25  well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You're

          3  talking about a temporary help you could sign up?

          4                 DR. DUNN:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just one quick

          8  last question.  Do you have any sense of what

          9  percentage of folks who are screened, so to speak,

         10  for domestic violence, what percentage of them

         11  report that they have been victims?

         12

         13                 DR. DUNN:  I don't have it off the

         14  top of my head, but I'd be very happy to give it to

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great.  Thank

         17  you.  Thank you very much.  I just want to thank

         18  Chris Windward Read of our staff for finding that

         19  thing from Wisconsin which we'll definitely forward

         20  everybody, which I think would be very helpful.

         21                 DR. DUNN:  We'd be very happy to look

         22  at it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you for

         24  that.  I want to thank you for being open to looking

         25  to having future meetings of myself and the
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          2  Committee and advocates and looking at the idea of

          3  trying to broaden what we do, following perhaps the

          4  lead you all set on domestic violence. I very much

          5  appreciate that.   Than you.  Have a good meeting.

          6                 For the Department of Health, if we

          7  could move over some questions for you guys.  Do you

          8  have a question for the Department of Health,

          9  Kendall?  Is your question for DOH?

         10                 First identify yourself for the

         11  record, blah, blah, blah.  At DOH's clinics, in

         12  general, and particularly the STD clinics.  Tell us

         13  what screening you do, what services you provide to

         14  folks when they come, people who you know are

         15  victims of sexual assault or rape or people you

         16  believe might be.  Kind of give us a sense of what

         17  happens in your clinics since we've just heard a

         18  little bit about what happens at HHC's.

         19                 DR. BLANK: Good morning.  My name is

         20  Susan Blank.  I am the Assistant Commissioner for

         21  the Bureau of Sexually Transmitted Disease Control.

         22  I'm a physician and I also do see patients in the

         23  STD clinics.

         24                 As far as what we do as for sexual

         25  assault victims, we're talking about a population,
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          2  first of all, that is different than the population

          3  that walks into say a general medicine clinic for a

          4  blood pressure checkup.  These are people who come

          5  to an STD clinic because they have a specific sexual

          6  concern.

          7                 As far as what happens, we do

          8  domestic violence trainings that have been done

          9  clinic by clinic.  We currently, as far as --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The training for

         11  staff, staff trainings?

         12                 DR. BLANK:  Yes.  And as far as the

         13  domestic violence screening tools that we use, they

         14  are the ones that have been put forward through the

         15  New York State Department of Health, and it's

         16  specifically the domestic violence screening in

         17  relation, that was put forward in relation to HIV

         18  counseling testing.  But it is universally

         19  applicable, and I have printed out copies for you

         20  folks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can I interrupt

         22  for one second?

         23                 DR. BLANK:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We just need to

         25  have Council Member Clarke, who's chairing the other
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          2  hearing, vote on the Reso.  I'm sorry.  Let me

          3  interrupt for one second.

          4                 THE CLERK:  Reso. 593, Council Member

          5  Clarke.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair, and please excuse this disruption.  I

          8  vote aye. Thank you.

          9                 THE CLERK:  The vote stands at six in

         10  the affirmative.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, we've

         12  already interrupted you.  Let me just -- the tool

         13  that you use you said is the State DOH tool, is that

         14  the same, do you know whether that's the same thing

         15  HHC is using?

         16                 DR. BLANK:  It sounded pretty

         17  similar, as Dr. Dunn went through it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Maybe if we could

         19  get copies of yours, too, it would just be

         20  interesting to see whether we're all using the same

         21  thing or not.

         22                 DR. BLANK:  Sure.  And those are,

         23  that's the screening that's used by our counselors,

         24  for example, in pre- test HIV counseling or for

         25  somebody who asks to see a counselor for some other
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          2  reason.  And the counselors that we have within our

          3  clinics are the public health advisors. That's

          4  usually one of the first people that they come

          5  across after registration.  And at the time of

          6  registration, there is the rare patient who may come

          7  in and say, "I've been sexually assaulted."  But let

          8  me just run through the rest of this and we'll go

          9  back to that.

         10

         11                 As far as the training for our

         12  clinicians, in New York State all physicians are

         13  mandated to be trained in sexual abuse for medical

         14  licensure, and we ensure that all our docs have had

         15  that training.  In addition, at our annual in-

         16  service trainings, we have had in the last two years

         17  someone come in and review the physical diagnosis

         18  related to sexual assaults.  In our STD clinics, per

         19  se, once a patient goes in to see a physician, our

         20  standard medical history, and I have brought you

         21  copies of a medical chart so that you can see, it

         22  includes a screening question, you know, after we've

         23  gone through the actual history of exposure and the

         24  sexual practices and any past STD history, in the

         25  past medical history we do have a specific question.
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          2    This is once the rapport, hopefully, has been

          3  established between patient and provider, asking the

          4  patient explicitly, have you ever been a victim of

          5  physical or sexual abuse and the date and the age of

          6  the patient at that time.

          7                 And then, lastly, and this is used to

          8  direct any needed referrals. And then the last piece

          9  is that on exam -- you know, again, our clinicians

         10  are sensitive to patient behaviors that might be

         11  indicative of a history of assault, either acute or

         12  longstanding in the past.  For example, our

         13  clinicians are trained to identify any genital

         14  pathology that may be evident at the time of the

         15  exam but, more importantly, besides evidence of

         16  traumatic injury is just some of the behavioral

         17  response.  For example, if a woman is about to have

         18  a pelvic exam, there are certain behavioral cues in

         19  terms of level of detachment, response to the

         20  placement of a speculum, even though you've walked

         21  her through that, that might be the tip- off, no

         22  matter what she's answered in the screening

         23  question.

         24                 So now having sort of gone through

         25  the actual steps, I think from the STD clinic
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          2  perspective, what is really critical is the issue of

          3  acute assault versus something that has happened in

          4  the distant past.  Acute assault, we really try to

          5  get them in a car and over to HHC as soon as

          6  possible.  We have very good relationships with the

          7  HHC emergency rooms that are proximate to our

          8  clinics because we are not trained or qualified to

          9  be collecting the evidentiary body that's necessary

         10  to go ahead with pursuing the case of acute sexual

         11  assault.  So again, those we really try to screen

         12  out quite quickly and get them to where they need to

         13  be.

         14                 For people who tell us that at some

         15  point in the past they have been sexually assaulted,

         16  and that does actually occur with some frequency

         17  even with the screening question, and although Dr.

         18  Dunn had said you can't really ask that directly of

         19  a -- you know, for a general medicine patient.  It's

         20  a little bit different in an STD clinic because they

         21  have come in for an STD- related complaint.  We do

         22  get feedback.  I don't have statistics for you, but

         23  people do tell us that they have been victims of

         24  physical or sexual abuse, and we try to make sure

         25  that that has been addressed, whether it is past
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          2  child abuse -- again, pursuing a perpetrator,

          3  current or past, to get that person in the care that

          4  they need to do that.  But more importantly, to

          5  ensure that they have the social services that are

          6  necessary subsequent to that.

          7                 I think that that -- you know, I

          8  think that   -- so I think that the patients are

          9  sort of in two camps: Those who come to us with an

         10  acute sexual assault complaint or that it may come

         11  out in the course of the history that there's been

         12  acute sexual assault, and those again we try to get

         13  over to HHC to one of the SAFE facilities where they

         14  can really be worked up appropriately and charges

         15  can be filed and the body of evidence can be

         16  collected, and then there are those that have, who,

         17  unfortunately, have been the victims of sexual

         18  assault at some time in the past.  And there we deal

         19  with the referrals to the Rape Crisis Centers and

         20  Safe Horizons, if necessary.

         21                 There was one other thing I was going

         22  to mention.  Why don't you ask your questions.  I'm

         23  sorry.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  A couple

         25  questions.  This may not be as much of a question,
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          2  but something perhaps for further discussions after

          3  the meeting.  It would be interesting to kind of

          4  have some, not being a doctor, though my mother did

          5  want me to be, so this is certainly the closest I'll

          6  ever get, it would be interesting to have some

          7  discussion with the folks who, our doctors and

          8  staff, who actually do ask that question.  You know,

          9  with the folks at HHC that kind of figure out and

         10  with the advocates to figure out what the right

         11  balance is on that based on your experience and

         12  whatever has been driving HHC's belief that it isn't

         13  the best thing to --

         14                 DR. BLANK:  Well, I think he was

         15  talking in a different -- I'm sorry for interrupting

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, no, please go

         18  ahead.

         19                 DR. BLANK:  But I think he was

         20  talking about a different setting.  He was talking

         21  about, from at least as I heard it and maybe I was

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Or I might have

         24  misheard.

         25                 DR. BLANK:  But I think you're asking
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          2  questions about the hidden victim --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

          4                 DR. BLANK:  -- And I think he was

          5  talking about somebody comes in for a blood pressure

          6  check --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

          8                 DR. BLANK:  -- How do you get at

          9  those issues of sexual abuse.  We're already in a

         10  sort of a different setting when you talk about

         11  somebody who --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That's true.

         13                 DR. BLANK:  People don't just drop

         14  into STD clinics, they usually have a real concern.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, that's a very

         16  fair point, actually.

         17                 Tell us a little bit about the

         18  training that the staff at the STD clinics have to

         19  be able to ask the questions, make the

         20  identification of symptoms, et cetera.

         21                 DR. BLANK:  Well, again, the training

         22  that they have is, as far as identification of

         23  symptoms, that is their training as clinicians we do

         24  review in our in services.  We have had in the last

         25  few years, it doesn't happen every year, but we have
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          2  had experts in child abuse and adult sexual abuse

          3  and review with all of our clinicians what are some

          4  of the telltale signs.  We do meet with our clinical

          5  staff once a month, and if there are any, if there's

          6  any discussion, any cases that come up, we discuss

          7  cases.  We may invite a discussion to come and

          8  perhaps lead us a bit through that.

          9                 I was actually very interested in Dr.

         10  Dunn had mentioned that HHC has a curriculum on

         11  violence, and we would be really very responsive.

         12  What might be helpful, honestly, is if it's

         13  something that could be put online, that people

         14  could review.  I think that would be a terrific

         15  asset for all of our clinicians.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I'm sure we can

         17   -- there's folks with HHC here so we can certainly

         18  explore that and talk about that in the future, you

         19  know, in the follow up conversations.

         20                 DR. BLANK:  I think that would be

         21  especially good for people who are in, again,

         22  general clinics, not necessarily people who are

         23  coming into clinics because they had some sex-

         24  related complaint.

         25                 The thing I was going to mention is I
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          2  think what is really difficult for us is that to

          3  date, again, we don't feel that we are the people

          4  who should be collecting evidence of people who have

          5  been acutely raped.  And what has come, what has

          6  happened to myself and several of our other

          7  clinicians is that somebody comes in and in the

          8  course of taking a history what you learn is that

          9  they're concerned about an STD or emergency

         10  contraception related to a recent, a very recent

         11  assault, within the last 72 hours, and saying to

         12  somebody, "You know, we really ought to get you over

         13  to a facility that can collect the evidence that's

         14  necessary to proceed legally with a case," and

         15  people telling us, you know, both women and men

         16  saying, "You know what, I don't want to press

         17  charges.  I just want to get checked up for an STD

         18  and make sure that I don't have any problems from an

         19  infectious point of view or a pregnancy point of

         20  view and really don't wish to pursue the gathering

         21  of evidence."  And what's really a challenge is

         22  trying to convince somebody, "Look, today you might

         23  not want to press charges.  Tomorrow you might feel

         24  differently about it and we've lost our window of

         25  opportunity."  And I think if there's a place that
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          2  we could really use some help is working with those

          3  folks who are willing to say I've been assaulted but

          4  are not willing -- and are wiling to come to an STD

          5  clinic but are not necessarily willing to get into a

          6  car to go to an emergency room, even if we're going

          7  to drive them, even if we've called in advance and

          8  that person's expected.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That's very, very

         10  helpful to the Committee to know that that is an --

         11  first of all, I'm sure that is an unbelievably

         12  difficult moment for a doctor or a nurse when that

         13  happens, and that the challenge of getting the

         14  person to take that next step, I'm sure, is actually

         15  very, very large and difficult.  So I appreciate the

         16  Department saying that they could use some help in

         17  how to figure out how to make the staff the best

         18  trained for that moment.  I think it's something

         19  that the advocacy community I know appreciates you

         20  asking for help on that and we will definitely

         21  follow up and try to figure out how we can get that

         22  training or whatever the best thing is to the staff.

         23                 DR. BLANK:  I think another area that

         24  is always an issue for us, STDs are often an end

         25  point of a lot of other behaviors that precede that
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          2  particular end point. Sometimes, for example, if we

          3  have young patients who have had an awful lot of

          4  sexual partners, very highly sexually active young

          5  people, we may or may not actually get a history of

          6  abuse at some point in their lives, but that is,

          7  that's definitely on the radar screen and it

          8  definitely does come up, so whatever we can do to

          9  help those folks, we would appreciate any input that

         10  anybody has.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         12  Council Member Stewart.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         14  I just wanted to ask you the same question that has

         15  been asked DOH concerning referral, because I know

         16  that some people, they're very resistant to giving

         17  information.  But I wanted to know when would you

         18  definitely make a referral for counseling?  Someone

         19  comes in to you and you know they've been abused but

         20  they, for example, they might have a black eye and

         21  said, "How did you get this black eye," and they

         22  said, "Well, I walked into the door" or something

         23  like that and you know definitely the door cannot

         24  cause that.  I'm only using that as an example.

         25  When would you make that referral to say, "Listen,
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          2  you need counseling as far as violence is concerned,

          3  sexual violence is concerned," or anything like that

          4  whereby they can get help?  When would you make that

          5  referral?  Do they have to cooperate first or when

          6  you see signs like that?

          7                 DR. BLANK:  Well, you know, for

          8  somebody who comes in with a black eye and a bad

          9  story, a bad story meaning it doesn't add up to why

         10  there's a black eye or two black eyes or sunglasses

         11  that don't come off until you ask that the

         12  sunglasses come off, it's really at that point, even

         13  though it has nothing to do with an STD per se or it

         14  may not.  I think that our staff is actually pretty

         15  familiar in the problem solving aspects or if you

         16  want to say confronting a patient that this story is

         17  not adding up to what we see and we're really

         18  concerned that there may be something else going on,

         19  we will try to see if we can bring out a few more

         20  details that might support a story or refute that

         21  story that we originally got.  But we will

         22  definitely   -- for an instance like that, that's

         23  actually a pretty straightforward one.  That is sort

         24  of a no brainer in the sense that we would

         25  definitely try to encourage somebody to do that.
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          2                 Another problem that we have, though,

          3  let's say that that were a case of domestic

          4  violence, is that when we do make the referrals for

          5  domestic violence, even if the -- first of all, a

          6  patient has to accept a referral and, as I had

          7  mentioned earlier, that's not so easy.  But if a

          8  patient does accept a referral, in order for us to

          9  get any feedback on that referral, the patient then

         10  has to sign a release because that information is

         11  really kept in its own confidential realm.  You

         12  know, patients don't always want to sign that

         13  release, so sometimes we don't even know what

         14  happened to our referral.  So I think -- let me say

         15   --

         16                 So getting back to your question,

         17  which was what's the threshold for the referral?

         18  Our threshold is pretty low.  I mean, we will refer

         19  when we think that a patient really needs a

         20  referral.  However, not every patient wants our

         21  referral, not every patient wants to hear from us,

         22  and that's their right to say no, thank you.  We can

         23  only do as much as we can.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

         25  Sears?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

          3  Actually, this is just a brief follow- up to

          4  Councilman Stewart.  I was going to ask that

          5  question, but I think I'll be a little more direct

          6  than that.  In terms of those who come into your

          7  clinic and don't wish to report anything but they

          8  want to be certain that they're kind of safe from

          9  anything, do you just give them a referral to a

         10  psychologist or someone there that they don't have

         11  to come back to you and to keep those statistics is

         12  irrelevant, because you wouldn't know unless they

         13  signed a release?  Because you said earlier that if

         14  they change their mind there's a window of 72 hours,

         15  et cetera.  If they do change their mind, do they

         16  have to go back to you?

         17                 DR. BLANK:  They don't --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  You know, to

         19  your --

         20                 DR. BLANK:  Nobody has to do

         21  anything, but I think that --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think we

         23  recognize that.  I think everybody on the Committee

         24  recognizes that nobody has to do anything.

         25                 DR. BLANK:  Yes.  But as far as the
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          2  referrals, our threshold for referral is pretty low

          3  in that we -- because we provide all kinds of

          4  referrals.  We really do try to look for -- it may

          5  not be a sexual assault issue with STD.  We're

          6  always concerned about substance abuse issues,

          7  mental health issues, so we do readily refer.  I

          8  think referring -- I think the economic issues

          9  around referral can be considerable, around any kind

         10  of mental health- related referral.  We may or may

         11  not hear back on the referral.  We don't routinely,

         12  with the exception of certain types of referrals, we

         13  don't routinely follow up to see if somebody has

         14  gone.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know that

         16  and you said that, and that really wasn't my

         17  question.

         18                 DR. BLANK:  Oh, I'm sorry.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Is that you

         20  had said that in those who don't want to report but

         21  have obviously come in because they're concerned

         22  about an assault or something and to be physically

         23  safe, if they were to change their mind, as you

         24  stated that if they did, to return, if you leave

         25  open that window of opportunity for changing their
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          2  mind, my question was do they leave with a referral?

          3  Whether they go or not is something else.  But do

          4  they leave with something if they --

          5                 DR. BLANK:  Oh, absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- Change

          7  their mind that doesn't really come back to the

          8  source of where they got that referral?

          9                 DR. BLANK:  Absolutely.  And I think

         10  that one of the reasons -- I think we generally,

         11  again, try to persuade people on the spot to go over

         12  to HHC.  And one of the things that HHC can offer

         13  that we cannot across the board is HIV post-

         14  exposure prophylaxis because we don't stock those

         15  medications.  And so, usually, that's often the hook

         16  that can get people to accept the referral.  Not all

         17  of our clinics at this point offer hepatitis B

         18  vaccine and we don't carry hepatitis B

         19  immunoglobulin if you were going to prophylac

         20  somebody.  And again, that's another hook for

         21  sending people over, to say, "This is really

         22  important that get just to be safe.  Here's one more

         23  reason to go to an emergency room."  People who say

         24  no thanks, we still will go ahead and put them in

         25  touch with where it is that they can go, absolutely.
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          2                 I think for us we're just sort of --

          3  the ethical dilemma is do you go ahead and take the

          4  STD specimens knowing that if that person says I

          5  don't want to pursue this and know that if you've

          6  done that, either the person's going to have these

          7  specimens repeated if they do, in fact, change their

          8  minds --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  What do you do

         10  when the specimens are taken?  Now, I'm confused.

         11  When you take the specimen, what is the process that

         12  you do after you take the specimen?

         13                 DR. BLANK:  In terms of what?  I'm

         14  sorry, I don't follow.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, what

         16  specimen do you take?

         17                 DR. BLANK:  Well, for example, we

         18  test, we do a blood test for syphilis, we do a test

         19  for gonorrhea and chlamydia, we will test for

         20  trichomonas, for bacterial vaginosis.  We are

         21  capable of doing pregnancy tests.  But the question

         22  becomes -- again, you want the specimens collected

         23  in a certain way for legal purposes.  We are not the

         24  people to do that.  And the person who says, "I

         25  don't want to go to wherever it is that I have to go
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          2  to get those specimens properly collected for

          3  subsequent perusal of a legal case," if we start to

          4  collect the specimens that we routinely collect, we

          5  don't want to be introducing anything that might

          6  mask the results on a test that's done in the

          7  official setting.  Some tests, for example in young

          8  people with chlamydia, there are different tests

          9  than the ones that we use that are the ones that are

         10  acceptable in a court of law.  We don't want to have

         11  to subject someone to two exams because today they

         12  didn't want to follow up with an emergency room at a

         13  SAFE program but tomorrow that they do.

         14  So that, for us, is always what we're trying, to

         15  hedge our bets.  And again, that's a place where I

         16  think that we could use a fair bit of guidance

         17  because it comes down to a case by- case call.  Do I

         18  collect these specimens in case this person really

         19  does not follow up, but if I collect these specimens

         20  I might ruin the playing field for the folks who

         21  really have to collect the specimens for the police

         22  and the courts of law.  Does that answer your

         23  question?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.  That's a

         25  dilemma.  It seems to me that that should be
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          2  resolved.

          3                 DR. BLANK:  Well, you know, again, we

          4  do it on a case- by- case basis.  I don't know if

          5  there's -- that there is -- I am not aware of any

          6  formal guidance that exists.  And again, if HHC or

          7  any of the advocacy groups here have any guidance --

          8  what we have been doing is, rather than doing a

          9  pelvic exam, we'll collect a urine specimen, for

         10  example, for gonorrhea and chlamydia, because we

         11  think that's going to minimally -- you know, that's

         12  not invasive. It's a non- invasive test.  But that

         13  means that we're sacrificing an exam.  So it is a

         14  difficult corner to be in and, again, any guidance

         15  that any of the advocacy groups or that HHC might

         16  give us, we would certainly appreciate.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just have two

         20  quick follow- up questions.  The screening question

         21  that you asked about rape and sexual assault, is

         22  that done face to face or is it on a form that the

         23  patients are filling out?

         24                 DR. BLANK:  It's done face to face.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.  And do you
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          2  have any sense of how many folks say yes to that?

          3                 DR. BLANK:  You know something, we

          4  currently use a paper medical record, although we

          5  are moving to a computerized --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I can't believe,

          7  Dr. Frieden allows that.  It must bother him

          8  immensely.

          9                 DR. BLANK:  Yes.  But I did bring a

         10  copy of it if it's okay to approach you folks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, the Sergeant

         12  will take that from you.

         13                 DR. BLANK:  I have three sets of

         14  copies.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great.

         16                 DR. BLANK:  I've included a copy of

         17  our medical record.  I've highlighted where the

         18  question occurs in our medical record and then the

         19  New York State Domestic Violence in relation to HIV

         20  counseling and testing.  It's just that it basically

         21  outlines what our counselors go through, regardless

         22  of whether it's an HIV test or not.  And then

         23  basically the cheat sheet for our counselors that

         24  are doing HIV, rapid HIV testing and how we try to

         25  make sure we cover it there.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great.  Thank you

          3  very much.  I don't think anybody else has any other

          4  questions. You guys have any other questions for

          5  DOH?  No?  Do you want to add anything?  You didn't

          6  get to say anything.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAPLAN:  Sure.

          8    Debbie Kaplan, Assistant Commissioner, Bureau of

          9  Maternal, Infant and Reproductive Health.

         10                 While we do not provide any clinical

         11  services where we examine women, we do have some

         12  minimal walk- in pregnancy testing and primarily

         13  what we do is home visits for pregnant women,

         14  parenting women and infants.  In those settings, we

         15  screen every woman who comes in for both domestic

         16  violence and sexual assault.  I brought a copy of

         17  the four questions we ask every woman.  Actually, a

         18  year ago when we looked at a year's worth of

         19  questions, we found that between 8 and 10% of the

         20  women had at least a history of either sexual

         21  assault or domestic violence.  We have not actually,

         22  in the three years we've been doing this, identified

         23  any women who were in an acute situation, a rape

         24  within the last few hours or even days, but we've

         25  had several women actually who were in unsafe
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          2  situations related to partner violence, and we had

          3  to immediately escort them and deal with some

          4  immediate situation and get them into a shelter.

          5  Most of the response are women who have a history

          6  and many who have never disclosed the history.  So

          7  in that case, we're referring them for usually

          8  counseling and other social support related to

          9  something that happened quite a long time ago.

         10                 In addition, we have a Community

         11  Educational Services Unit that provides training to

         12  staff and to the community.  Actually this Thursday,

         13  and I brought a copy of it, we're having training on

         14  adolescent relationship violence which will talk

         15  specifically about a range of adolescent

         16  relationship violence as well as date rape.  So we

         17  invite anyone who's interested.  It's this Thursday

         18  and I brought a copy of it.  We also have --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Commissioner,

         20  could, I don't mean to interrupt you, but the

         21  Council staff or advocates, that would be okay if

         22  they --

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAPLAN:  We

         24  would be delighted.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We'll make copies
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          2  and we'll give them to the folks who are here.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAPLAN:  I

          5  also brought some samples of some of the other

          6  training we offer, more on domestic violence than on

          7  sexual assault.  But I brought that just for your

          8  information.

          9                 Lastly, we've also developed a series

         10  of written materials, including poster campaigns,

         11  more related to emergency contraception, but

         12  specifically noting that emergency contraception is

         13  available for women who've been raped or sexually

         14  assaulted.  So I just brought some samples of a

         15  poster.  We have a "Take Control" palm card in

         16  English, Spanish and Chinese that talks about

         17  emergency contraception.  In all our materials

         18  related to reproductive health, a birth control

         19  brochure that recently came out, "Healthy Mothers,

         20  Healthy Babies".  We always have information about

         21  emergency contraception being available if you've

         22  been sexually assaulted.  So this is just

         23  information available for free to the public and can

         24  be ordered through calling 311.  They're also

         25  available on our website.  I included my card for
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          2  you to know how to get to the website as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  Thank

          4  you very much.  You mentioned, let me ask kind of an

          5  open- ended question, I hadn't, actually hadn't

          6  thought to ask about how this issue might be raised

          7  in the newborn visits that you were doing.  Is there

          8  anywhere else in the Department where the issue of

          9  sexual assault or rape is screened for or asked or

         10  comes up that we might not have thought to ask?  I

         11  should say I think that's great that you have

         12  included domestic violence and rape and sexual

         13  assault in those visits.  It's unfortunate you've

         14  had to do as much as you've had to do, but it's

         15  really a great thing that you were, that the

         16  Department saw that as an opportunity to help women

         17  in need and that you've been able to do that.  So I

         18  really want to applaud you for that.  Is there

         19  anywhere else that we might just not even have seen

         20  the opportunity that you were wiser and did?

         21                 DR. BLANK:  You know, I think that,

         22  again, any group that is doing HIV counseling and

         23  testing in whatever setting is supposed to be

         24  talking about domestic violence and sexual assault

         25  is one manifestation, at times, of domestic
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          2  violence.  I think that's where the opportunity is

          3  because that is -- as we're all being encouraged to

          4  scrutinize HIV testing, that that should become part

          5  of the -- it should be -- it is by law part of the

          6  pre- test and post- test counseling process.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAPLAN:  I

          8  should just clarify, with the newborn, we have two

          9  home visiting programs, Nurse Family Partnership and

         10  Newborn and one obviously difficulty is that if

         11  you're doing a visit in the home there may be other

         12  people present and it's not always possible to have

         13  the woman alone and it's not always appropriate to

         14  ask her that when you're, especially with the

         15  newborn where you're really making one visit.  She

         16  doesn't know you, where the nurses who develop long-

         17  term relationships always have that opportunity.

         18  So, with the Newborn, they're also trained to just

         19  look for evidence or to pick up other possible cues

         20  that may lead them to be concerned and to leave

         21  literature.  So, we always give women who we see

         22  literature about the hot line number and a number to

         23  call so they know, even if they don't mention

         24  anything, that this is an opportunity that's

         25  available.  So it raised the issue whether we can
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          2  actually talk about it or not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great.  Well,

          4  thank you very much.  We'll definitely be back in

          5  touch.  Thank you. And thank you for all the

          6  materials that you brought.  Oh, go ahead, go ahead,

          7  God knows I don't want to cut anybody off.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KAPLAN:  I

          9  think that in leaving information for people who may

         10  have been assaulted and want to do something about

         11  it -- for example, I thought it was really telling,

         12  even here in the ladies' room, there were things

         13  tacked on the paper towel dispensers.  I think that

         14  doing that sort of thing, in haircutting places, in

         15  high schools, in libraries, might be, again, one way

         16  of just raising public awareness that it's okay,

         17  there's help available and you can come forward

         18  about this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Definitely.  We

         20  may not get into it in this hearing, but in some of

         21  the other Council's hearings, the Alliance and some

         22  of the other groups have also developed some

         23  materials particularly targeting young boys, teenage

         24  boys on this issue which -- and I assume that

         25  they're effective and well- designed because when I
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          2  see them I don't understand them, they mean nothing

          3  to me.  It's a very kind of computer game image, so

          4  I think that if it did resonate with them, and it

          5  was designed for teenage boys, they would have done

          6  the job poorly.  So I think they have done well with

          7  them absolutely.  But getting that information out

          8  to women and men and girls and boys is very, very

          9  important.  Thank you all very much.

         10                 I want to call up the next panel

         11  which is Tamara Pollak, Victoria Frye, Leslie

         12  Rottenberg, Kay Johnson and Lynne Stevens.  While

         13  they are on their way up and the Sergeant is very

         14  nicely arranging the extra chairs we need, we are

         15  going to call the roll for Minority Leader Oddo.

         16                 THE CLERK:  Resolution 593, Council

         17  Member Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         19                 THE CLERK:  The vote now stands at

         20  seven in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         21  no abstentions. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  After you all get

         23  seated, just please testify in whatever order you

         24  would like.  But just before you begin your

         25  testimony, just identify yourself for the record.
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          2  When the light is off, the mike is on. It's a little

          3  bit backwards.  Whatever order you would like to

          4  deliver the testimony is fine with us.

          5                 MS. POLLAK:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

          6  want to thank the Council, the Health Committee and

          7  Committee Chair Quinn for the opportunity to

          8  participate in this important hearing.   My name is

          9  Tamara Pollak, and I work at the New York City

         10  Alliance Against Sexual Assault.  The Alliance is a

         11  non- profit organization that provides leadership in

         12  creating a society in which rape and sexual abuse

         13  are not tolerated, in which communities actively

         14  work to prevent rape and sexual abuse and provide

         15  resources and intervention to survivors.

         16                 By training I am a nurse and a public

         17  health advocate.  As a symptom of my professions,

         18  I'm compelled to find solutions.  If you, Council

         19  Chair Quinn, come and tell me you have a headache,

         20  sure, I'll probably end up telling you to take some

         21  Motrin.  But before I do, chances are I'll ask you,

         22   "How bad is the headache?  How long have you had

         23  it?  Is this hearing making it worse?  Do you think

         24  this hearing caused it?"  You see, the only rational

         25  way to begin speaking about a health problem is to
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          2  focus on finding a solution, and the way we find

          3  solutions to any health problem, including public

          4  health problems, is to first define the scope of the

          5  problem:  How bad is the headache? How far reaching

          6  is the problem of sexual violence in New York City,

          7  and how profound are the health consequences of

          8  sexual violence.

          9                 The next thing we do is determine the

         10  cause of the problem, what caused the headache.  And

         11  just the same, I need to ask what causes people who

         12  survive sexual violence to then suffer chronic

         13  health conditions that diminish their quality of

         14  life.

         15                 The next step is to start to

         16  determine effective interventions.  A Motrin or

         17  maybe another cup of coffee for the headache.  For

         18  sexual violence, maybe providing people the

         19  opportunity to talk about sexual abuse. Maybe asking

         20  people specifically, face to face, if they have ever

         21  been forced to do something sexual they did not want

         22  to do, and letting them know where they can go for

         23  help and guaranteeing that they get help.

         24                 The final step is to implement the

         25  intervention.  I have some Motrin in my bag.  I can
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          2  give you one after this.  I also have colleagues at

          3  this table who have designed programs to screen

          4  people for past and present sexual violence, and

          5  they are ready to help here today.  We have that

          6  information at this table, and we're excited to

          7  share it with you.

          8                 But before we do, let's back up to

          9  step one: Defining the scope of the problem.  Are we

         10  able to discuss the scope of sexual violence in New

         11  York City?  Sort of.  As you well know, sexual

         12  violence is referred to by the CDC as a "hidden"

         13  crime, a "silent epidemic," as a problem w know

         14  exists but that overwhelmingly goes unreported and

         15  undetected.  The real extent to which women,

         16  children and men experience sexual assault remains

         17  difficult to estimate. The experts agree that this

         18  is a vast problem affecting a huge segment of the

         19  population.

         20                 Our best estimates?  Our best

         21  estimates are that one in six women have been

         22  sexually assaulted or abused in her lifetime.

         23                 Just like intimate partner violence,

         24  sexual assault affects all women of all ages, races

         25  and economic status.
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          2                 One out of four American women will

          3  experience intimate partner violence in her

          4  lifetime, and many of those will experience, many of

          5  those experiences will include forced sex.

          6                 In the Rape in America Study, 60% of

          7  the women who reported being raped were under 18

          8  years old.  29% were less than 11 years old.  32%

          9  were between 11 and 17.            Based on data

         10  from a nationwide study conducted nearly ten years

         11  ago, we know that 22% of American women report being

         12  forced by man to do something sexual they did not

         13  want to do.

         14                 More recent surveys show that one in

         15  five female high school students reports being

         16  physically or sexually abused by a dating partner.

         17  Despite the fact that these young women suffer all

         18  the consequences of sexual violence and of rape,

         19  they don't even recognize their experiences as

         20  having been victimizing.  They have brought up in a

         21  culture where forcing a woman to have sex is just

         22  okay.

         23                 Sexual violence against men as well

         24  as women in same- sex partnerships is terribly

         25  underreported, and even more under- researched in
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          2  terms of prevalence than sexual violence against

          3  women and children.  However, if you talk to any

          4  rape crisis counselor in New York City, you'll learn

          5  the numbers are significant.  So as I focus my

          6  testimony today on sexual violence against women and

          7  children, it is not to suggest that men are not

          8  victims, as we have already heard today, but rather

          9  in recognition that women and children are the

         10  predominant victims of sexual violence.

         11                 That brings us to another very

         12  relevant statistic.  National studies estimate that

         13  only between 5 and 10% of female victims of sexual

         14  assault -- violence ever seek professional medical

         15  care and even fewer report to the police.  According

         16  to research done in 2000, almost 83% of females

         17  raped by intimate partners do not ever tell anyone

         18  about that violence, and they are not asked.  When

         19  they are not asked specifically about sexual

         20  violence, when those words aren't used, this

         21  reinforces taboo.  This amplifies silence.  And the

         22  implications are far reaching.

         23                 From a public health perspective, we

         24  don't even have a good grasp on the scope, and our

         25  best guess is that this problem is even bigger than
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          2  we think.  What does this mean for New York City?

          3  It means we need more information.  It means we need

          4  to focus more attention on finding out who is

          5  affected, how many are affected, how are they

          6  affected.

          7                 Beyond how many, we need to know how,

          8  how are people affected by sexual violence, how is

          9  another aspect of scope, and we know that people's

         10  entire lives are affected by sexual violence, and

         11  that overwhelmingly, these consequences can be

         12  viewed as health problems.  Victims of sexual

         13  assault experience acute psychological trauma, acute

         14  physical injury, chronic stress- related health

         15  problems due to ongoing violence and chronic stress-

         16  related health problems due to past violence.

         17                 Let me start with acute health

         18  outcomes.  In the immediate aftermath of an incident

         19  of sexual violence, a survivor can experience

         20  physical symptoms from assault occurred injuries:

         21  Bruising, muscle soreness, headaches, nausea, sleep,

         22  eating disruptions.  Gynecological and general

         23  complications may be present as well.  Many

         24  survivors experience fear and anxiety related to

         25  pregnancy and the transmission of sexually-
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          2  transmitted infections including HIV, any of which

          3  can occur as a result of sexual violence.  According

          4  to the CDC, the risk of contracting a sexually-

          5  transmitted infection following rape may be as high

          6  as 30%.  Furthermore, research shows that risks of

          7  contracting a sexually- transmitted infection,

          8  including HIV, increases in a setting of pre-

          9  existing infections.  This means that those with

         10  poor access to health care, who are more likely to

         11  have untreated conditions, especially young people,

         12  are at greater risk of contracting infections,

         13  including HIV, as a result of forced sex.

         14                 Unwanted pregnancy is another acute

         15  health outcome of rape.  Among adult victims, almost

         16  5% of pregnancies are the result of rape.  The

         17  incidence of rape related pregnancies is higher

         18  among adolescent victims and younger women as they

         19  may be unaware of or have limited access to

         20  emergency contraception or may not have access to

         21  any long- term contraceptive method like the birth

         22  control pill.

         23                 In terms of mental health outcome,

         24  sexual abuse takes a tremendous emotional toll on

         25  victims.  Most victims of sexual assault experience
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          2  acute psychological reactions immediately after the

          3  assault.  Feelings of detachment, fear, anxiety,

          4  depression are common, and many victims report an

          5  inability to concentrate, an increased incidence of

          6  nightmares, sleeplessness, guilt, self- blame,

          7  anger, isolation and difficulty having

          8  relationships, going to school or just functioning

          9  at work.

         10                 Researchers have found that the

         11  anxiety manifested in the acute stress following

         12  rape also has physical symptoms:  Dizziness, chest

         13  pain, shortness of breath.  Some researchers have

         14  found that stress reactions like abdominal pain may

         15  become learned responses to victims of trauma and

         16  lead to longer- term problems like chronic abdominal

         17  pain and irritable bowel syndrome.  Although victims

         18  of forced sex feel, all victims of forced sex feel

         19  an uncontrollable sense of vulnerability.  A victim

         20  who is raped by someone she or he knows, someone she

         21  or he is intimate with experiences an especially

         22  acute breakdown in feelings of safety and security.

         23  These are the victims that are even more unlikely to

         24  report.  78% of rapes are committed by someone known

         25  to the victim.
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          2                 The long- term health outcomes.

          3  Actually, before I proceed to long- term health

          4  outcomes, I want to spend a moment talking about

          5  what we know about the risk of sexual violence in

          6  pregnancy.  We know that pregnancy increases the

          7  risk of intimate partner violence and that pregnant

          8  teenagers are particularly susceptible to sexual

          9  violence by a partner.  Rates as high as 29% have

         10  been reported, and physical and sexual abuse during

         11  pregnancy can lead to miscarriage, fetal injury,

         12  pre- term delivery, as well as low birth rate and

         13  material or fetal death.

         14                 So the long- term health outcomes.

         15  The acute health outcomes of sexual violence as a

         16  result of the assault are very easy to follow.  It's

         17  a cause and effect relationship that we can easily

         18  conceptualize.  In some cases, the chronic health

         19  outcomes are the same.  For example, pelvic

         20  inflammatory disease is a chronic and direct health

         21  outcome of an untreated sexual- transmitted

         22  infection contracted through rape.  However, many

         23  chronic health consequences of sexual assault do not

         24  lend themselves to this sort of clean cause and

         25  effect model.  Instead, chronic health outcomes of
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          2  sexual violence are often mediated by a number of

          3  factors that are important to recognize in the

          4  context of public health analysis in order to

          5  recognize what we're referring to today as the

          6   "silent victim".

          7                 Extensive research links sexual abuse

          8  to a host of psychosocial and behavioral

          9  characteristics including depression, anxiety, post-

         10  traumatic stress. Victims who are sexually abused as

         11  children usually become sexually active at earlier

         12  ages.  They are at higher risk of becoming teen

         13  parents, of practicing unsafe sex, of abusing

         14  alcohol and other drugs.  Any childhood sexual abuse

         15  is associated with impaired adult physical

         16  behavioral and psychosocial functioning.

         17                 These effects of childhood sexual

         18  abuse are predictive of a long- term health outcome

         19  of rape that occurs at any point in the lifespan:

         20                 31% of all rape victims develop rape-

         21  related post- traumatic stress disorder.

         22                 Rape survivors are 13 times more

         23  likely than non- rape survivors to attempt suicide,

         24  and 6.4 times more likely to have used cocaine and

         25  other drugs.
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          2                 Child and adult histories of sexual

          3  and physical abuse appear frequently to be the first

          4  experience in a sequence that leads to homelessness.

          5                 Numerous nationwide studies

          6  consistently show that prevalence rates of sexual

          7  abuse histories are as high as 50 to 70% among women

          8  who are inpatient at psychiatric facilities.

          9                 The U.S. Public Health Service Office

         10  on Women's Health reports that 50 to 75% of women in

         11  substance abuse treatment programs are survivors of

         12  sexual violence. Rape victims are three times more

         13  likely than non- victims to experience a major

         14  depressive episode in heir lives.

         15                 The rate of suicide attempts by rape

         16  victims, 13 times higher than non- victims.

         17                 In recent studies, rates of eating

         18  disorders, as well as drug, alcohol and tobacco use,

         19  were twice as high in adolescent girls who reported

         20  being physically or sexually abused by dating

         21  partner than in girls who had not been abused.  Four

         22  to six times more likely to have ever been pregnant.

         23    Girls who have been abused compared to their non-

         24  abused peer, and these girls were six to nine times

         25  more likely to have had recent suicidal ideation.
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          2                 This means that sexual violence

          3  places a substantial burden on health care systems.

          4  Victims often present with vague somatic complaints

          5  that are difficult to diagnose and to treat.  In

          6  addition, when cases of sexual assault are not

          7  correctly screened for, diagnosed and treated,

          8  unidentified victims are more likely to become

          9  repeat users of health services and not to have

         10  their health needs met.  This creates a distinct

         11  burden on services that my colleague, Dr. Victoria

         12  Frye, will describe in more detail next.

         13                 Over ten years ago, Dr. Anne

         14  Flitcraft, a gynecologist, wrote in the Journal of

         15  American Medical Association, "Quicker than you can

         16  put on a band- aid, you can acknowledge the violence

         17  that battered women have experienced.  You can

         18  assert that it is illegal, that is not her fault,

         19  that a lot of women are in her situation.  You can

         20  educate her about the community- based resources

         21  available to her and ask, "Are you safe?"

         22                 In a study published in 2000 in the

         23  American Journal of Preventive Medicine, women with

         24  an abuse history answered questions about how they

         25  felt when a health provider asks them about abuse.

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  86% of women agreed that routine screening for

          3  sexual violence and intimate partner violence would

          4  make it easier to get help.  96% were glad someone

          5  took an interest, and 74.5% of abused woman said

          6  that when their physician or health care

          7  professional talked to them about abuse, it was

          8  helpful.

          9                 Sexual violence is a citywide

         10  problem.  It's a statewide problem.  It's a dire

         11  national concern and it's an international dilemma.

         12  New York City needs to respond to this problem, not

         13  only because of significant health care costs, but

         14  out of a concern for the wellness and quality of

         15  life owed to everyone who lives in this city.

         16  Asking women if they have or are experiencing

         17  violence and pointing them to resources will help.

         18  There is an urgent need to begin implementing

         19  screening programs and measuring their

         20  effectiveness.  We have the resources here to guide

         21  the New York City Council on how to do this.  I

         22  thank you for your time.

         23                 DR. FRYE:  Good morning, Chairwoman

         24  Quinn and members of the City Council.  My name is

         25  Dr. Victoria Frye, and I'm here to describe the
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          2  economic cost of sexual violence.  I'm a

          3  sociomedical scientist and work at the Center for

          4  Urban Epidemiologic Studies at the New York Academy

          5  of Medicine, a research organization devoted to

          6  understanding and addressing the public health and

          7  social issues and policies that affect urban areas.

          8                 The economic costs of sexual

          9  violence, which includes completed and attempted

         10  rape and sexual assault and sexual homicides are

         11  enormous.  Assessing the costs of sexual violence is

         12  difficult for a variety of reasons, but there exists

         13  several scientific studies that have attempted to do

         14  so.  Today I will describe results from two of the

         15  most rigorous of these studies.  I will also try to

         16  make the figures that I present meaningful so that

         17  the full impact of these economic costs can be

         18  better understood.

         19                 The costs of sexual violence are

         20  generally divided into two categories:  Tangible or

         21  direct and intangible or indirect.

         22                 The tangible or direct costs include

         23  the costs of medical treatment for rape and sexual

         24  assault.  For example, receipt of HIV prophylaxis,

         25  mental health and crime victim services, loss of
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          2  wages, economic productivity, police investigations,

          3  criminal prosecutions and may include the costs

          4  associated with incarcerating the perpetrator or

          5  other costs associated with the criminal -- the

          6  correctional system.

          7                 The intangible or direct -- or

          8  indirect costs include the psychological pain and

          9  suffering of sexual violence survivors and the

         10  generalized fear of sexual violence that all members

         11  of society experience, women in particular.  Ms.

         12  Pollak just described these intangible costs in

         13  great detail.

         14                 A comprehensive and widely- cited

         15  study of the costs of criminal victimization found

         16  that in 1993 dollars the estimated cost of

         17  rape/sexual assault was $87,000 per incident.  The

         18  estimated cost of a sexual homicide was $2.94

         19  million.  This compares with the estimated cost of

         20  arson, which was $38,000 and a non- sexual assault,

         21  which was $9,000.

         22                 The estimated cost of sexual violence

         23  include, as they're broken down, $500 for short-

         24  term medical care costs, $2,200 for mental health

         25  services costs, $2,200 for lost productivity costs
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          2  and $81,400 for pain and suffering.

          3                 An earlier study by the same authors

          4  found that when rape is accompanied by an additional

          5  physical injury, both the medical care and

          6  productivity costs more than double.

          7                 The loss in short- term productivity

          8  due to rape/sexual assault is considerable.  The

          9  Bureau of Justice Statistics has estimated that

         10  nearly 20% of sexual assault victims lose time from

         11  work due to the assault.  Of these, one in five

         12  misses 11 or more days.  A Centers for Disease

         13  Control and Prevention report estimated that

         14  approximately 21% of survivors of intimate partner

         15  rape/sexual assault miss time from work.  The

         16  average number of days lost per rape was eight days

         17  and 13.5 days of household work.  I should say that

         18  these seem to me to be great underestimates.

         19                 The pain and suffering cost of sexual

         20  assault significantly outweighed the direct or

         21  tangible costs of the crime.  As Ms. Pollak

         22  described a moment ago, it's estimated that between

         23  30 and 50% of all rape survivors experience at least

         24  one symptom of rape trauma syndrome and many go on

         25  to develop full- blown post traumatic stress
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          2  disorders.  The suffering that this causes is almost

          3  certainly underestimated in these calculations.  The

          4  association between rape, sexual assault and suicide

          5  attempts is significant.  Women with a history of

          6  rape or sexual assault are between six and 12 times

          7  as likely to have reported attempting suicide than

          8  are women without such a history.

          9                 The tangible and intangible costs

         10  described here are almost certainly underestimates

         11  for several reasons.  First, these estimates exclude

         12  the cost of operating the criminal justice system.

         13                 Second, the estimates exclude the

         14  actions that people take to avoid becoming a crime

         15  victim or a victim of rape and sexual assault.

         16                 Third, the estimates exclude the

         17  long- term effects on productivity for rapes that

         18  are not also accompanied by another physical injury.

         19                 Fourth, they exclude loss of victims'

         20  earnings resulting from psychological injury caused

         21  by domestic violence, since anywhere from 20 to 50%

         22  of domestic violence victims are also sexually

         23  assaulted by their partners.  At least some of these

         24  long- term effects are due to the experience of rape

         25  and sexual assault in addition to the domestic
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          2  violence they experience.

          3                 Fifth, the costs do not include what

          4  they call "second generation" costs, which for rape

          5  and sexual assault could include the effect on

          6  families of experiencing the rape or sexual assault

          7  of a parent or caregiver.

          8                 Finally, the costs outlined above

          9  actually exclude the cost of sexual homicides.

         10                 So, what do these costs actually

         11  mean?  Well, at a cost of $87,000 per incident,

         12  given more recent incidence estimates from the mid

         13  1990s, the total cost of rape/sexual assault in the

         14  United States in 1995 was approximately $26 billion.

         15    Including the cost of sexual homicides adds

         16  another $500 million to that estimate.  Thus, the

         17  total cost per year comes to $26.487 billion.

         18                 What exactly does this mean, though?

         19  One study conducted in Michigan estimated that if

         20  there was a sexual violence tax that had to be

         21  levied to pay for these costs, an average family of

         22  four living in Michigan would have to pay an extra

         23  $2,750 in 1996.

         24                 And what would $26.5 billion per year

         25  buy the United States?  It would finance all of the
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          2  following federally- funded Department of Health and

          3  Human Services programs in 2003.  It would finance

          4  all of TANF, child care and development block

          5  grants, substance abuse prevention and treatment

          6  grants, HIV care grants, centers for research on

          7  mothers and children, community mental health

          8  services, health department- based HIV and AIDS

          9  surveillance, among others.  It equals half of the

         10  Department of Education's 2003 expenditures.  So we

         11  could increase spending on education by 50%.  It

         12  equals five times the EPA's 2003 expenditures.  So

         13  we could quintuple their budget.  Finally, it would

         14  pay for little less than a third of the current

         15  costs of the war in Iraq.

         16                 So how do we contain these economic

         17  costs? The most effective way to control the

         18  economic cost of rape is to prevent sexual violence

         19  from happening in the first place.  Currently

         20  spending on rape prevention programs is totally

         21  inadequate as compared to the cost of sexual

         22  violence.  Programs such as rape and sexual assault

         23  awareness and prevention for children and youth,

         24  public education and awareness campaigns and

         25  programs that work to change the social norms that
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          2  fail to condemn, if not openly support, a sexually

          3  violent society are needed in much greater scope,

          4  numbers and intensity to actually have an impact on

          5  rates of sexual violence.  I would argue that

          6  screening programs are one such program that

          7  communicates very powerfully that rape and sexual

          8  assault is not to be tolerated.

          9                 The second most effective way to

         10  control the economic cost of rape is to identify

         11  survivors as soon as possible after the rape has

         12  occurred and to connect them with services that will

         13  ameliorate the psychological and other symptoms that

         14  have already developed or may be about to develop or

         15  worsen.  By identifying and strengthening healthful

         16  social support, obtaining crime victim compensation,

         17  providing mental health services, if needed, the

         18  devastating psychological and social effects of

         19  sexual violence may be lessened.  One study has

         20  estimated that just 35% of rape survivors ever

         21  receive mental health services. Given the tremendous

         22  underreporting of rape, even this number is most

         23  likely high.  If the health care system were able to

         24  identify and connect to services the remaining

         25  portion of survivors, potential costs associated
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          2  with long term pain and suffering would likely be

          3  greatly reduced.

          4                 Rape has been called attempted murder

          5  of the soul.  Some rapes are successful in this

          6  regard and the cost of this is, of course,

          7  incalculable.  Still, we do try to estimate the cost

          8  of sexual violence, mainly as a way to justify

          9  programs or activities that will reduce its

         10  occurrence and impact.  The information that I have

         11  just presented clearly outlines the tremendous

         12  economic burden sexual violence places on society.

         13  Reducing this burden is imperative for both economic

         14  and humanitarian reasons. Thank you.

         15                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  Good morning.  I am

         16  Leslie Rottenberg, Senior Director of Social

         17  Services at Planned Parenthood of New York City.  On

         18  behalf of Jon Mallen, President and CEO of PPNYC, I

         19  would like to thank the City Council and the Health

         20  Committee for this opportunity to testify on the

         21  importance of universal screening for sexual

         22  violence and intimate partner violence in health

         23  care settings. I would especially like to thank

         24  Speaker Miller for his commitment to addressing the

         25  issue of sexual assault by convening five separate
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          2  hearings on this serious public health concern.  In

          3  addition, I would like to thank Health Committee

          4  Chair Christine Quinn for her leadership, once

          5  again, on the health matter's profound significance

          6  that affects thousands of New Yorkers.  I would also

          7  like to thank all the members of the Health

          8  Committee for being here today.

          9                 PPNYC is here today to testify in

         10  support of universal screening for sexual assault

         11  and intimate partner violence in health care

         12  settings such as ours, and in support of training

         13  health care providers who do these screenings.  Our

         14  position is based on firsthand, many years of

         15  firsthand experience as a provider, as well as

         16  recent research we have conducted that I will be

         17  discussing below.

         18                 PPNYC has been a leader in

         19  reproductive health care for almost 90 years.

         20  Currently we have health centers in three boroughs:

         21  Manhattan, Brooklyn and the Bronx, and we serve more

         22  than 40,000 women, men and adolescents each year at

         23  these centers.  We offer the full range of services

         24  relating to sexual and reproductive health, routine

         25  gynecological care, detection and treatment of
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          2  cervical cancer, contraception, abortion, HIV

          3  testing and counseling and screening and treatment

          4  for sexually transmitted infections.  We welcome

          5  individuals of all income levels including those who

          6  are unable to pay.

          7                 So what have we done regarding

          8  screening for intimate partner violence at PPNYC.

          9  As reproductive health care providers, we have been

         10  aware of two things:  First, that as providers we

         11  are in a unique position, interacting with clients

         12  in a reproductive health care setting and, second,

         13  that the scientific research shows that there is a

         14  strong connection between reproductive health and

         15  intimate partner violence.  For example, from our

         16  experience and supported by the literature, we know

         17  that violence is very likely to be part of the

         18  reason for failure to use contraception, because the

         19  threat of abuse makes birth control negotiation

         20  difficult, if not impossible.

         21                 Research shows that a woman whose

         22  pregnancy was unintended has two to four times the

         23  risk of experiencing physical violence than a woman

         24  whose pregnancy was planned.  Therefore, in our

         25  efforts to provide comprehensive and preventive
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          2  health care to our clients, in the year 2000 we

          3  added two questions to our medical history intake

          4  form, a questionnaire that is filled out by the

          5  client in writing- it is not administered to the

          6  client by a staff member- it would screen for sexual

          7  and intimate partner violence.  One question asks if

          8  the patient has ever experienced rape or sexual

          9  abuse, and the other question asks if the patient's

         10  current partner ever physically abuses or frightens

         11  her.  Clinicians, counselors and social workers

         12  followed up whenever there was an affirmative

         13  response to either of these two questions.

         14                 Once we added these screening

         15  questions to our medical history form, we wanted to

         16  determine how prevalent sexual and intimate partner

         17  violence was among our population.  Our analysis of

         18  the intake forms revealed that 11% of our clients in

         19  one of our health centers indicated that they had

         20  experienced sexual or physical violence in a

         21  relationship.  Because we know from experience that

         22  women are often hesitant to answer these questions,

         23  it was safe to assume that this number was actually

         24  under count and we decided to take further action.

         25                 We then instituted a policy that, in
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          2  addition to the two questions on the medical history

          3  intake forms, assessed all clients for relationship

          4  violence through a face- to- face screening with a

          5  provider at every visit.  Once again, if there were

          6  any affirmative responses to the written questions

          7  on the intake form or to questions asked by the

          8  provider, referrals were made to a social worker.

          9                 What is important to note is that

         10  both the written screening on the medical history

         11  intake form as well as the universal screening

         12  conducted personally and privately by the provider

         13  are important screening tools. The written screening

         14  identified some women and opens the door for others.

         15    It also lets the woman know that our health center

         16  is a safe place to talk about these concerns.

         17  The personal face- to- face screening allows for a

         18  more comfortable place to follow up and, for some, a

         19  different, perhaps more personal way in which to

         20  disclose the violence.

         21

         22                 I will discuss the results of our

         23  increased efforts in a moment.  First, I'd like to

         24  provide an example that illustrates the need for

         25  one, the written screening, two, the face- to- face
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          2  follow- up and, three, the ongoing provider

          3  training.

          4                 A 51 year old woman recently came

          5  into our Brooklyn clinic where she had an

          6  appointment for follow- up after a diagnosis of a

          7  sexually- transmitted infection.  She had been a

          8  long- time patient of our Brooklyn clinic and had

          9  filled out a medical history form and answered no to

         10  both screening questions a number of times.  She is

         11  married and had told us that she only had this one

         12  partner in the past 20 years.  Because she was not

         13  having sexual relations with her husband for several

         14  years, she and her provider were puzzled as to how

         15  she had gotten the sexually- transmitted infection.

         16  After talking with the provider, she finally

         17  disclosed that she believed that the sexually-

         18  transmitted infection, which had actually caused an

         19  abnormal pap test, was contracted from the man who

         20  had raped her 12 years before.  In fact, the rape

         21  was the reason she had stopped sleeping with her

         22  husband.

         23                 This story is a clear example of the

         24  need for both universal screening and ongoing

         25  provider training. This client only disclosed the
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          2  sexual assault because of the personal screening

          3  conducted by the provider and because the client

          4  then felt she had a relationship with the provider

          5  who was well- trained and whom she trusted and

          6  believed could make appropriate referrals for her.

          7                 We recently conducted a survey of our

          8  providers to determine what more we could be doing

          9  to increase the provider's ability to screen for

         10  physical and sexual violence.  We learned that, in

         11  general, our providers were committed to the

         12  screening process, but there were some barriers that

         13  inhibited them from doing a better job of screening.

         14    Some providers said they were reluctant to screen

         15  because they didn't feel prepared to handle the

         16  disclosure.  They wanted to be sure that we could

         17  provide a satisfactory response before they opened

         18  the issue.  We also learned that we needed to attend

         19  the important differences in screening and referring

         20  younger women.

         21                 In an effort to improve our current

         22  screening policy, training and practice, especially

         23  as it relates to younger women ages 15 to 24, we

         24  began working with researchers in the Columbia

         25  University School of Public Health to develop a
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          2  screening tool that would be more effective with

          3  younger women, and to also develop a more effective

          4  provider follow- up protocol.  This collaboration

          5  with Columbia began with a survey of 650 of our

          6  clients.            Our preliminary results lends

          7  support for universal screening, both written and

          8  face to face, and the need for ongoing training of

          9  providers.  We found an overwhelming majority of

         10  young women, 74%, had experienced physical violence,

         11  sexual violence or controlling behavior by a partner

         12  in the past year.  Controlling behavior includes

         13  things like being suspicious of infidelity when a

         14  woman talks with another man and having restrictions

         15  on seeing friends and family.  67% experienced

         16  physical violence one or more times and 29%

         17  experienced sexual violence.  We also found some

         18  important information about screening women.  Of the

         19  young women we surveyed, 53% had been asked by a

         20  provider if they'd experienced violence in their

         21  relationships, but only 44% had ever had a provider

         22  ask if they had been forced to have sex by partners

         23  or ex partners, and 81% said it would be okay to be

         24  asked about violence, and an equal number said that,

         25  if asked, they would be honest in their responses.
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          2                 Clearly, we have found support for

          3  the fact that intimate partner violence, which in

          4  its definition includes sexual violence, is an all

          5  too frequent occurrence in the relationships of

          6  young women who attend PPNYC clinics.  We do not

          7  believe that our population is particularly unusual

          8  or that these numbers are unique to PPNY clients.

          9                 Currently, we are working on testing

         10  screening models that are more appropriate for young

         11  women and developing a script for providers to use

         12  in interviews with young women in an effort to

         13  increase disclosure to providers.

         14                 In closing, I would like to again

         15  thank the Council for the high priority it has given

         16  to this very important issue.  As other panelists

         17  have and will state, the negative consequences of

         18  sexual assault and intimate partner violence affects

         19  thousands of New Yorkers and their families.  This

         20  issue cannot be neglected.  Today we are here using

         21  our voices to speak for the thousands of women we

         22  see who would greatly benefit from the opportunity

         23  to discuss these issues in a safe, supportive

         24  environment.  We need to provide them with access to

         25  the resources they need to gain more control over
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          2  their lives and to be better prepared to take care

          3  of their health and wellbeing of their family.

          4                 MS. JOHNSON:  Good afternoon.  My

          5  name is Kay Johnson and I've been a social worker

          6  here in New York City for the past 18 years as a

          7  clinician and a supervisor and director of various

          8  outpatient mental health clinics and substance abuse

          9  programs.

         10                 Today I am here speaking with you and

         11  I want to thank you for this opportunity to speak

         12  with you about a program in New York City which

         13  currently is using --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Do we have your

         15  testimony?

         16                 MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, it starts

         17  universal screening for sexual violence.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Very good.

         19                 MS. JOHNSON:  I'm here to speak to

         20  you about a program in New York City which currently

         21  is using five universal screening questions,

         22  including two questions about sexual violence

         23  experiences for all patients receiving care in two

         24  medical clinics for patients who are HIV positive.

         25  And most importantly, to give you an example of the
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          2  long term consequences in the life of a woman who

          3  experienced sexual violence as a child and as an

          4  adult, which was left unidentified and untreated

          5  until she was in her late 30s.

          6                 The EIPP Project.  In 2001 the St.

          7  Luke's Roosevelt Hospital Center, Center for

          8  Comprehensive Care, a New York State designated AIDS

          9  center since 1987, was awarded a demonstration grant

         10  through the Center for Disease Control, called the

         11  Early Intervention and Prevention Program.  The CCC

         12  serves more than 2,750 persons annually and of those

         13  persons, two- thirds are men and one- third are

         14  women.

         15                 The EIPP program was designed for the

         16  prevention and early intervention of sexual violence

         17  and intimate partner violence in the population of

         18  HIV infected individuals enrolled in their care as

         19  well as their children.  The project was developed

         20  in response to the growing understanding of the

         21  association between HIV and sexual violence and

         22  intimate partner violence and in an effort to

         23  address gaps in service.

         24                 The project established a unique

         25  collaboration with the St. Luke's- Roosevelt
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          2  Hospital's Crime Victims Treatment Center, CBTC,

          3  which was established in 1977 as a rape crisis

          4  center.  CBTC treats survivors of sexual assault,

          5  childhood sexual abuse, domestic violence and other

          6  violent crimes and connects them with other violence

          7  prevention, advocacy and support services in the

          8  city.

          9                 CBTC also works with the St. Luke's-

         10  Roosevelt Hospital Center's emergency departments to

         11  address the sexual violence and intimate partner

         12  violence issues identified through the use of

         13  screening questions and provides training to medical

         14  interns to assist them to recognize the physical and

         15  emotional signs of both current and historical

         16  sexual violence in IPV experiences.  To ask

         17  questions about and provide sensitive medical care

         18  to patients with histories of sexual violence and

         19  intimate partner violence and to consider developing

         20  a universal screening approach in their practice.

         21                 The goals of the EIPP program are to

         22  improve the identification of sexual violence and

         23  intimate partner violence in the population of HIV-

         24  infected individuals in care at CCC, to improve

         25  access to culturally- competent sexual violence and
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          2  intimate partner violence services that are tailored

          3  to the HIV- infected population, to reduce the

          4  occurrence of intergenerational violence in the HIV-

          5  infected population and to expand the knowledge and

          6  understanding of sexual violence and intimate

          7  partner violence in the HIV infected population.

          8                 I'm going to skip over the objectives

          9  because they're primarily the same as the goals and

         10  move on to the program design.  This model of care

         11  seeks to expand access to sexual violence and

         12  intimate partner violence services to a population

         13  in need and increases the knowledge and skills of

         14  primary care providers in treating both trauma and

         15  violence.  The model seeks to incorporate the Crime

         16  Victims' Treatment Center's treatment strategies of

         17  advocacy and empowerment approaches within an HIV

         18  primary care setting without a "medicalization" of

         19  the service delivery.

         20                 So what actually happens?  During

         21  this project the primary care staff in the

         22  Comprehensive Community Care's clinics are trained

         23  in the dynamics of sexual violence and intimate

         24  partner violence and their relationship to HIV.  The

         25  primary staff are trained to screen all patients for
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          2  sexual violence and intimate partner violence using

          3  a short five question screening instrument to

          4  identify individuals who have experienced or who

          5  currently experience sexual violence and intimate

          6  partner violence. Responses to those five questions

          7  include a yes, a no or the person refused to answer.

          8

          9                 The questions are:  Have you ever

         10  been emotionally abused or physically hurt by your

         11  partner or someone close to you?  In the past year,

         12  have you been hit, slapped, kicked or otherwise hurt

         13  by your partner or someone close to you?  Two

         14  questions about sexual violence.  Has anyone ever

         15  forced you to have sexual activity?  In the past

         16  year, has anyone forced you to have sexual activity?

         17    And the last question, are you afraid of your

         18  partner or someone else close to you?

         19                 The screening is given for all new

         20  patients to the clinics, as well as during annual

         21  visits.  Patients who screen positive on any one of

         22  the five questions are offered the following:  The

         23  opportunity to meet with an EIPP assessor for

         24  additional assistance and assessment, as well as

         25  referral for sexual violence and intimate partner
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          2  violence services at the Crime Victims Treatment

          3  Center which was done during Phase 1 of the grant

          4  and at the comprehensive Community Care Clinics

          5  during Phase 2 of the grant.  This project has just

          6  entered Phase 2.

          7                 In the last year and a half initial

          8  findings from this grant have found that one- third

          9  of all clients who have been screened, screen

         10  positive for any kind of violence.  25% of males are

         11  screening positive, 54% of females are screening

         12  positive.

         13                 As time goes on, we're finding that

         14  the staff's time, ability and training to ask

         15  questions sensitively is impacting in terms of the

         16  response and, also, just considering the nature of

         17  trauma and violence, that usually people keep it a

         18  secret.  So one of the other findings initially from

         19  this particular project is that some people are

         20  saying no during the first time they're asked, but

         21  at their annual checkup they're answering yes,

         22  because now they've established a relationship of

         23  trust with their primary care provider.

         24                 It's this kind of a situation that I

         25  now am going to tell you about this story of a woman
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          2  that I've worked with in the last six months.  She

          3  initially said no to the questions and recently, in

          4  the last six months, said yes.

          5                 P is a 38 year old woman.  She grew

          6  up with her mother, father and brother in the Bronx.

          7    Her mother worked.  Her father was a very angry

          8  man and drank.  She describes coming home from

          9  school and sneaking into their apartment and

         10  checking to see what kind of mood her father was in.

         11    Sometimes he was sleeping on the couch and

         12  sometimes he would be awake watching TV.  Those were

         13  the "safe" times.  Other times he would see her and

         14  fly into a rage.  He blamed her for something that

         15  happened during the day and she would be screamed at

         16  and sometimes beat.  And then there were the times

         17  when he got a loving look in his eyes and he would

         18  have her sit on his lap.  Those were "nice" times.

         19  And at first she hoped that he was in that mood when

         20  she came home.  But eventually, he began to hurt her

         21  while she sat on his lap.  At first she didn't

         22  understand what was happening, but eventually she

         23  realized he was having sex with her and eventually

         24  was able to name it "rape".

         25                 In order to survive and not commit
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          2  suicide, P began drinking when she was only nine

          3  years old.  She remembers the first time.  She felt

          4  so normal, not scared but calm.  She started

          5  drinking regularly in her teens and went on to

          6  harder drugs, primarily crack.  In order to get

          7  money to survive, she began prostituting.  A few

          8  times she was arrested.  It was during this time

          9  that she was gang raped and became HIV positive.

         10  She isn't able to name where and when it happened.

         11  It could have been from a "John", it could have been

         12  when she was raped or it could have been when she

         13  started sharing needles.

         14                 P is lucky, or as she would say, "her

         15  higher power was looking out for her".  In her

         16  never- ending search for a better life, she became

         17  involved with a "sugar daddy" who gave her a home

         18  that was safer than the streets.

         19                 In many ways, her life is nothing

         20  like it used to be.  She has been living for the

         21  past five years with a man who works and most of the

         22  time treats her well. She attends her church and

         23  volunteers at their food program weekly.  She spends

         24  time with friends.  She has goals of continuing her

         25  education.  However, she continues to struggle with
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          2  addiction, post- traumatic stress disorder,

          3  depression and relationship problems.  Her partner

          4  is alcoholic and is emotionally abusive.

          5                 During all of this time he never

          6  opened up about her experiences of sexual violence

          7  and, at times, has had difficulty following up with

          8  needed medical care because she's so easily

          9  triggered.  She experiences flashbacks, fear,

         10  anxiety and anger during physical exams.

         11                 During the past year as a result of

         12  the universal screening at her primary care clinic,

         13  P opened up for the first time about the sexual

         14  violence she experienced in her early years at the

         15  hand of her father and on the streets.  She agreed

         16  to receive services at the Crime Victims Treatment

         17  Center.  She has been working hard to meet her

         18  goals, to stop using crack, to address PTSD and

         19  depression, to build her esteem and learn about

         20  resources which will give her more choice about her

         21  living situation and to move forward with her

         22  educational goals.

         23                 During the past six months she has

         24  picked up crack approximately once a month and she's

         25  made tremendous progress in finding other ways to
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          2  handle the deep feelings and PTSD symptoms and

          3  depression which are related to being abused.  She

          4  is better able to cope with her partner's emotional

          5  abuse and the anger flashbacks she experiences. She

          6  is enrolled in an outpatient substance abuse program

          7  in order to receive additional support around her

          8  sobriety. Late last month she celebrated a

          9  milestone.  She received much needed surgery to

         10  address a painful physical problem which kept being

         11  postponed due to her extreme fear in using

         12  substances to cope with her feelings.

         13                 Just think about what a difference it

         14  might have made if her experiences of sexual

         15  violence had been identified earlier.  But think now

         16  about the difference it's making in terms of

         17  receiving the needed medical care and preventing

         18  other long- term care costs.  Those possibilities

         19  include hospitalization, home health care, law

         20  enforcement costs and residential treatment.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 MS. STEVENS:  Good afternoon.  My

         23  name is Lynne Stevens.  I'm a psychotherapist,

         24  educator and consultant working in the area of

         25  violence against women. I'm also the Director of the
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          2  Responding to Violence Against Women Program, which

          3  partners with U.S. And international groups to

          4  develop programs that improve the lives of victims

          5  of violence through screening programs that

          6  identify, assess, educate and refer victims of

          7  violence who attend social and health care services.

          8                 Efforts to combat violence against

          9  women are evolving.  While early efforts focused on

         10  recognizing and documenting the scope of the

         11  problem, we are now working to find ways to prevent

         12  violence and to help victims.  Here, too, there's an

         13  evolution.  As we move from treating individuals to

         14  developing model public health programs that can

         15  reach large numbers of women, my own professional

         16  experience parallels this evolution.

         17                 As a psychotherapist who practiced

         18  for over 25 years, specializing in working with

         19  victims of trauma, I have treated many women who

         20  have experienced violence.  I have noticed that when

         21  my clients who were victims of sexual violence went

         22  to health care providers, they were not asked about

         23  childhood sexual abuse or rape, even though their

         24  present- day symptoms were often directly or

         25  indirectly related to the violence.  Their not being
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          2  asked also created crises in their treatment because

          3  their providers did not understand why these clients

          4  were, for example, having a fearful reaction to

          5  being touched in a certain manner.           Since

          6  most providers have not been taught to screen for

          7  sexual violence as part of their schooling, they do

          8  not feel comfortable asking their patients about

          9  this subject.  We also know that most survivors on

         10  their own will not disclose this information.  Thus,

         11  there's a terrible silence between survivors and

         12  providers.  Two people in a room, one afraid to tell

         13  and the other afraid to ask.  Yet research shows

         14  that survivors want to be asked about the sexual

         15  violence in their lives and the people they say they

         16  most want to be asked by are their health care

         17  providers.

         18  So it's a way to help survivors get help, including

         19  the clients I work with.

         20                 I began to train health care

         21  providers in New York City and in other places on

         22  how to screen, assess and refer survivors of sexual

         23  violence.  In the early trainings I led, the

         24  participants who attended were usually a few

         25  individuals from a number of institutions.  They
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          2  would then return to their institution and try to

          3  apply what they have learned.  But after doing this

          4  for a while, I began to ask myself a series of

          5  questions:  Who else at that institution would do

          6  the screening?  Where would the providers obtain the

          7  referral resources for the women who answered yes to

          8  their questions about childhood sexual abuse and

          9  rape?  How and where would the provider document the

         10  sexual violence in the patient's chart so that the

         11  next provider would know about her experience and

         12  tailor their care to accommodate her?  Would the

         13  provider who had been trained continue to screen for

         14  violence without any collegial and institutional

         15  support.

         16                 Thus, I realized that training

         17  individuals was not enough.  This needed to be a

         18  programmatic effort and the program needed to be

         19  integrated into health care facilities.  Since

         20  sexual violence is not an extraordinary event but,

         21  rather, happens on a daily basis to ordinary women,

         22  it's important to ask about sexual violence where

         23  these ordinary women go for care.  It would be more

         24  effective to programmatically integrate the

         25  identification, screening, assessment and referral

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  and/or treatment of survivors into different types

          3  of health care services, making it part of the basic

          4  quality of care women receive. Especially in primary

          5  health care such as reproductive and sexual health,

          6  maternal child health and prenatal settings, staff

          7  has a potentially critical role to play in

          8  identifying and assisting victims.

          9                 One way to conceptualize what needs

         10  to be done is to think of a stool with three legs.

         11  What I had originally been doing was giving people

         12  only one leg, the training leg, and a stool can't

         13  stand on only one leg.  A real programmatic approach

         14  would consist of three legs:  The first, training

         15  and sensitization; the second, policies and

         16  procedures and the third, monitoring and review.

         17                 I was able to pursue this idea by

         18  working with groups such as International Planned

         19  Parenthood Federation/Western Hemisphere Region and

         20  the United Nations Population Fund, helping them

         21  develop gender- based violence screening and

         22  referral programs for women in developing and mid

         23  level countries.  These programs took place in such

         24  countries as Venezuela, Dominican Republic, Nepal,

         25  Sri Lanka, Armenia and Romania.  I've also begun
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          2  these programs in the United States.

          3                 Studies show that survivors of sexual

          4  violence are capable of healing from the trauma, and

          5  one of the most important initial parts of this

          6  healing is having another person name and validate

          7  their experience in a concerned, knowledgeable

          8  manner.  But most health care providers are not

          9  educated to screen women for sexual violence, and so

         10  miss this ideal opportunity.

         11                 One big concern of health care

         12  providers is that they are not sure what to do if a

         13  woman would answer yes to their questions about

         14  sexual violence.  What training could teach them is

         15  that their actual role is crucial but limited.  The

         16  provider does not need to listen to the whole story.

         17    The appropriate response for a provider is to give

         18  the victim support, understanding, validation,

         19  information and an appropriate referral.  With good

         20  training, providers can feel confident to do that.

         21                 A high quality training and support

         22  is also critical because providers have a very

         23  important role to play in educating all women about

         24  sexual violence.  The provider is not only asking a

         25  woman about sexual violence, he/she is also
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          2  educating this woman about what sexual violence is,

          3  which she may or may not know, and educating her

          4  about her personal and legal rights.  A well-

          5  trained provider can also indirectly and directly

          6  give a woman the message during their time together

          7  that if she were ever raped, they would want to know

          8  about it, and that they would be able to help her.

          9  So looking at this way, even if a provider asks a

         10  new patient about sexual violence and the client

         11  answers no, the provider has actually done quite a

         12  bit just by asking.

         13                 In addition to the training of the

         14  actual providers, there also needs to be

         15  sensitization about sexual violence for all the

         16  staff at a facility, as all of the staff has a

         17  potential role in this screening program. Everyone

         18  at the facility needs to be included in the basic

         19  sensitization:  The receptionist, the security

         20  guard, the cashier.  In Venezuela, where I worked on

         21  developing and implementing a violence against women

         22  screening program for IPPF/Western Hemisphere

         23  region, we trained the security guard and then when

         24  he would see a woman being beaten in the street, he

         25  would wave her into the clinic.  The cleaning woman,
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          2  also sensitized, would hear victims of violence

          3  crying in the bathroom, and she knew how to help

          4  them. Everyone has a role to play.

          5                 Because sexual violence is an

          6  emotional and upsetting topic that affects not only

          7  the survivor but also the person hearing about it,

          8  providers, especially, need to have training that is

          9  ongoing, for people need support and new skills in

         10  order to continue to do this type of work.

         11                 One final point about training, which

         12  is especially relevant where there are multiple

         13  sites for a screening program, is that it is

         14  important to have a standardized sensitization for

         15  all of the staff and standardized in- depth training

         16  for providers who are screening women.  With

         17  standardized sensitization and training, each group

         18  then receives the same high quality of training.

         19                 The second leg of the stool is

         20  policies and procedures.  I will just touch on a few

         21  of those.

         22                 A standardized set of screening

         23  questions for sexual violence needs to be developed,

         24  tested and used by every provider.  Every woman that

         25  gets asked then gets asked the same questions about
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          2  sexual violence so we know that they are being asked

          3  the best and clearest questions.  This

          4  standardization of questions then allows for the

          5  collection of valid data.

          6                 There needs to be mechanisms in place

          7  so that there is a specific time and place in the

          8  visit when every female patient is screened and

          9  there are safeguards so that the answers to these

         10  questions are kept confidential.  The answers to the

         11  questions would be written on a specific form and

         12  placed in the woman's chart where this information

         13  could be found by the next provider who sees her.

         14                 Providers also need to know what to

         15  do after a woman does disclose that she is a victim

         16  of sexual violence.  These policies would be in

         17  writing and communicated to each provider.

         18                 A referral book needs to be developed

         19  so that on- site and off- site referrals can be made

         20  and women are sent to services that match their

         21  needs.

         22                 Most women who disclose sexual

         23  violence to a provider are probably disclosing it

         24  for the first time.  You must, therefore, create an

         25  environment in the health care facility that
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          2  educates women about why she's being asked about

          3  sexual violence, let's them know that the providers

          4  and other staff people at this facility are

          5  knowledgeable about this topic and encourages trust

          6  and disclosure. Displaying written material for

          7  patients about sexual violence, having providers

          8  wear buttons saying "We Talk About Sexual Violence

          9  Here", and putting relevant posters on the wall can

         10  help create such an environment.  In Nepal, because

         11  there is such a low level of literacy amongst women,

         12  the family planning clinic outside of Kathmandu

         13  showed videos about violence in the waiting room as

         14  a way to start women thinking about this topic

         15  before they were screened.

         16                 The third leg of the stool is

         17  monitoring and review.  This is a crucial leg

         18  because it makes sure that the stool stays upright.

         19  At the beginning of the program it is essential to

         20  build in indicators of performance and have everyone

         21  understand the objectives of what is being done.

         22  Monitoring and review can give us answers to

         23  questions such as:  Are we asking the best questions

         24  for screening?  Are women's answers being documented

         25  in their charts?  Are survivors being referred and
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          2  is this information written in the charts?  Is this

          3  program working?  Is it doing what we want it to do?

          4

          5                 Of course, collecting data doesn't

          6  help if the data are not reviewed and actions taken

          7  based on the findings, so there needs to be

          8  oversight of the program.               Starting

          9  small by beginning a screening program in a few

         10  sites allows time to gain experience, identify

         11  problems and address then and, thus, improve

         12  quality.  I have learned from working on projects

         13  that there are always challenges and it is best to

         14  enhance the program early on when it's still small.

         15  Using a three- legged model that includes raining

         16  and sensitization, policies and procedures and

         17  monitoring and review can make for a successful,

         18  balanced program.

         19                 Often people in the health care

         20  system see sexual violence as a complex problem that

         21  would require an enormous amount of work in order to

         22  tackle successfully. When asked about integrating

         23  attention to sexual violence into services, they say

         24  that they fear that if this topic were opened up,

         25  the needs and the problems of the victims would
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          2  overwhelm the staff.  Consequently, they would not

          3  be able to complete the work they are already

          4  required to do. But this is not true.  Actually,

          5  integrating the assessment of sexual violence can

          6  enhance other programs at a facility. Experience has

          7  shown us that sexual violence screening programs can

          8  be beneficial to the clinic staff and patients. For

          9  staff, having training on the assessment and

         10  treatment of sexual violence can add to their

         11  repertoire of skills, offering them not only

         12  information about sexual violence but techniques

         13  that can be used to discuss other sensitive topics

         14  with patients.  It can also give them interpersonal

         15  skills that can enhance provider/patient

         16  relationships. This can also give victims of sexual

         17  violence the support and care that they need.  This

         18  can then make a huge difference, empowering not only

         19  the patient, who may disclose the violence, but also

         20  the staff as well.

         21                 Sexual violence is unfortunately part

         22  of many women's lives.  Many victims of sexual

         23  violence have been waiting a long time to have the

         24  opportunity to name what has happened to them and

         25  get the help they need in a positive environment
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          2  with caring people who will listen, support and

          3  assist them.  We know that women's lives can start

          4  to change when they are given permission to speak

          5  about the violence in their lives and are offered

          6  sensitive care and assistance.  This can then help

          7  them begin to heal from the effects of the abuse.

          8  Integrating sexual violence screening programs into

          9  health care services in New York City offers

         10  survivors a place to begin.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just before the

         12  last person testifies, I just want to announce the

         13  fliers about the meeting that the Department of

         14  Health referenced, which I think is tomorrow -- no,

         15  I'm sorry, the 21st, the fliers are on the desk over

         16  there if anybody wants one.

         17                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  If the Committee

         18  will permit me, my remaining few paragraphs speak to

         19  the world of government in addressing this issue.

         20  My colleagues have asked if I would conclude our

         21  panel with these brief remarks.

         22                 PPNYC would urge --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I'm sorry, just

         24  identify yourself for the record so when we go back

         25  to the tape we know who spoke.
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          2                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  Sorry.  I'm Leslie

          3  Rottenberg.  I'm the Senior Director of Social

          4  Services for PPNYC.

          5                 PPNYC would urge the Health Committee

          6  to consider legislative and budgetary proposals that

          7  address the issues of universal screening for sexual

          8  assault and intimate partner violence in health care

          9  settings and for the training of providers.  We

         10  believe that there is a role for city government to

         11  play here.  PPNYC has had the pleasure to work

         12  collaboratively with this Committee before, and the

         13  advocacy groups and individuals on this panel today

         14  would welcome the opportunity to work with the

         15  Committee to identify remedies to address these

         16  issues.

         17                 There are many models at which to

         18  look.  In 2003, H.R. 1267, the Domestic Violence

         19  Screening, Treatment and Prevention Act was

         20  introduced in the House of Representatives by New

         21  York Congresswoman Nita Lowey, among others.  In

         22  2002, S. 2236, The Domestic Violence Screening and

         23  Services Act was introduced in the Senate by the

         24  late Senator Paul Wellstone who, as we all know, was

         25  deeply committed to this issue.  At the state level,
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          2  there are also examples to review.  Pennsylvania's

          3  Domestic Violence Health Care Response Act, enacted

          4  in 2001, allocates $1 million per year for medical

          5  advocacy project sites that assist in the

          6  implementation of policies and procedures including

          7  universal screening, as well as provision of

          8  training to hospital and clinic staff.  Laws and

          9  bills introduced in other states including

         10  California, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and

         11  Washington may also provide some interesting

         12  approaches.

         13                 Please note that the bill names

         14  listed above use the language "domestic violence",

         15  which includes intimate partner violence and may

         16  include sexual assault. Any legislative proposals

         17  the Council may consider should not focus

         18  exclusively on domestic violence, but should also

         19  include sexual assault that occurs both within and

         20  outside intimate relationships.

         21                 We are not endorsing any one of these

         22  models, but offer them as examples in suggesting

         23  that there is a role for government to play in

         24  ensuring that universal screening takes place and is

         25  conducted by trained professionals.
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          2                 One final note:  What all these

          3  legislative proposals have in common is funding.

          4  Without resources to support the work, the training,

          5  the implementation of universal screening, the

          6  demonstration projects, the research to determine

          7  the best practice models for different populations,

          8  none of this work can ever get done.  Whatever

          9  legislative proposal the Committee and the Council

         10  may consider will require dedicated resources.

         11                 On behalf of PPNYC, thank you again

         12  for the commitment and concern you have given to the

         13  issue of sexual assault.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         15  wanted to ask all or any, based on your testimony

         16  but also your experience and also your having

         17  listened to the folks from DOH and HHC this morning,

         18  do you have any additional or more specific steps

         19  you would want to see the Council and the

         20  Administration take immediately?

         21                 Let me just say, partially in the

         22  wrap- up paragraphs you just read, it seems to me

         23  legislative action is certainly a way to go, but it

         24  also seems like my kind of take on HHC and DOH this

         25  morning was that there was a tremendous amount of
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          2  willingness there and that we might not actually --

          3  funding will absolutely be needed, whether it's a

          4  legislative mandate or a cooperative mandate, but it

          5  seems to me that we might actually have a great

          6  opportunity to sit down and come up with a plan as

          7  opposed to saying I legislatively require you to do

          8  this, which is a good thing, but if you can do it

          9  without that, sometimes I think you get better

         10  results.  Though, clearly, whatever one does would

         11  always have to include funding.

         12                 So did you have any other, anybody

         13  have any takes on what they heard this morning in

         14  addition to all of the very helpful information you

         15  gave in your testimony?

         16                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  I actually have, I

         17  have a few questions.  If I could ask questions of

         18  them here, I would ask them, and a lot of them, you

         19  know, flow from what we've talked about so far.  So

         20  referring back to one of the legs of the stool, how

         21  are these existing programs that are being

         22  implemented monitored?  And how do we know that what

         23  is being described is actually being done and being

         24  done in a sensitive and, again, and particularly in

         25  a culturally sensitive way without the monitoring
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          2  component of these programs?  And, obviously, there

          3  needs to be accountability there.  Who monitors it?

          4  How is it reported to the public? Who has access to

          5  this information?  So that would be one of my

          6  questions.

          7                 I would also --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You should just

          9   -- I'm sorry -- there's folks here from HHC and I

         10  think probably from DOH as well.  There are both, HH

         11   -- so they're writing, and our staff is writing

         12  them down as well.  So we will forward these

         13  questions to have further dialogues.

         14                 I'll just add one of mine before I

         15  forget it, and this is probably a DOH question, in

         16  that DOH has an internal process where in their

         17  infant mortality reduction initiatives they have

         18  case reviews of infant mortality, of the infants who

         19  die.  I just wanted to see whether this issue is

         20  ever looked at in that context, because someone who

         21  was testifying was -- raised the relationship

         22  between rape, one woman is pregnant, so if we could

         23  just forward that question as well?  Sorry.

         24                 I mean, there were just other general

         25  questions for the STD clinics.  Is it possible for
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          2  them to be trained to conduct evidence collection

          3  and conduct forensic exams?  Was it seemingly some

          4  sort of a structural physical problem with them

          5  being able to do that?  And one of my questions was

          6  is, can they be trained to do that, can that be

          7  added to that site as an option?  Because asking

          8  folks, women, men, young people who've been raped

          9  and sexually assaulted to not go here but go down

         10  the block, go -- you know, it's another opportunity

         11  to lose somebody.  So offering them the services at

         12  the point of entry into the system would seem to be

         13  a very important thing to add.  So, my question's

         14  very genuine, what are the obstacles to preventing

         15  that?  Is that some sort of a legal issue,

         16  liability, et cetera?

         17                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  On that point

         18  specifically, I would also --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Every time you

         20  speak, just re- identify yourself.  That's okay.

         21  No, just because we tape it and then transcribe it,

         22  so...

         23                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  Leslie Rottenberg,

         24  Senior Director of Social Services for Planned

         25  Parenthood of New York City.
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          2                 On that specific note, the forensic

          3  evidence collection for acute assault out of

          4  emergency room settings and in STD clinics is an

          5  issue that PPNYC has looked at really closely

          6                 On that specific note, the forensic

          7  evidence collection for acute assault out of

          8  emergency room settings and in STD clinics is an

          9  issue that PPNYC has looked at really closely

         10  recently because we don't do forensic evidence

         11  collection.  We actually have a standing policy and

         12  procedure on the subject from what we've looked at

         13  and why we came to the decisions we came to and what

         14  we do about that.  We do have a policy and have

         15  thought about it.

         16                 MS. STEVENS:  Lynne Stevens, Director

         17  of Responding to Violence Against Women Program.

         18                 I guess one of the things that struck

         19  me this morning was that sexual violence is seen as

         20  an extraordinary event rather than when a woman goes

         21  to have her blood pressure checked or her diabetes

         22  checked or whatever it is or her GYN exam.  That

         23  this is the time and place to ask about sexual

         24  violence, and that most women, as people have said,

         25  want to be asked about sexual violence.  What we do
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          2  know is that after a woman is raped, her health care

          3  visits increase almost 60% in the first year after

          4  the rape and then continue to increase for two years

          5  after that.  So she is actually going to a health

          6  care provider about her health more often after the

          7  rape than before the rape.  So here's an ideal

          8  opportunity.

          9                 And if we do advocacy, which I think

         10  is important, or wait for women to come into the ER

         11  or make hot line calls, we're going to see some

         12  women, but the majority of women are not going to do

         13  that.  They're not going to define themselves that

         14  way.  They're not going to go to a Rape Crisis

         15  Center, but they are going to go to their health

         16  care provider.

         17                 So it seems to me that this is a

         18  system then that would allow women to get the

         19  services they need, the help they need without

         20  having to take personal responsibility for getting

         21  somewhere else.

         22                 MS. POLLAK:  Hi.  Tamara Pollak, New

         23  York City Alliance.

         24                 I think in just in closing and to

         25  synthesize all these answers into one, into what we
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          2  can do immediately is I think Lynne Stevens made a

          3  really good point in her talk, that you need to

          4  start small and focus on a few particular areas.

          5  It's great that there's a receptive audience at DOH

          6  and HHC.  And that's so appreciated, and that is

          7  such a wide open door and one that we want to take

          8  advantage of.  If we are able to then use that

          9  audience in small settings in one clinic at a time

         10  or two clinics at a time and set up a plan that

         11  works, if we then make providers feel comfortable

         12  with this, if we make everyone in the clinic, if we

         13  make patients feel comfortable that it's okay to

         14  talk about this, we change the culture.  We make a

         15  really big difference by starting really small and

         16  that will spread, and it can happen at the education

         17  level.  The more we talk about it, and the more this

         18  is comfortable and the more we realize this is not

         19  extraordinary, but very ordinary, and that there is

         20  a lot of help out there, I think we'll be able to

         21  make progress.  So I think the place to start is

         22  small and in those places that already have the

         23  doors open.  I think that will unlock other doors.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

         25  Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.  I just had one simple question because

          4  in your research I notice you didn't mention

          5  anything about social or cultural or even economic

          6  or racial or ethnic makeup of those 74% of the

          7  people that had some kind of experience. And the

          8  reason why I ask that is that some of these victims

          9  believe that what has happened to them is okay, is

         10  normal. I can tell you that because of my

         11  background, where I came from some young women

         12  believe that if their man doesn't hit them or

         13  doesn't rough them up, doesn't do this thing, he

         14  doesn't love them.  And they believe that is normal.

         15    So it's something that we have to educate them.

         16  We have to let them know that that is not normal.  I

         17  was wondering in your studies if here in New York

         18  City what is the makeup, what is the ethnic makeup

         19  of those folks, the 74% that has some kind of, some

         20  of that type of violence experience?

         21                 MS. STEVENS:  Of the 650 women who

         22  completed questionnaires, we did take demographic

         23  information from experience, knowing that there is

         24  certainly a cultural component in attitudes, in how

         25  they feel about potential abuse or their own
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          2  experiences and how they would feel about a provider

          3  asking and disclosing and all of these things are

          4  affected by one's culture.  I don't have the

          5  breakdown numbers in front of me.  The research is

          6  in the middle of being analyzed, but we can

          7  certainly forward those numbers if you're interested

          8  in actual numbers.  But they're not, they're not in

          9  front of me, but we did look at it in the research

         10  and we're still analyzing an enormous amount of data

         11  on it.

         12                 But in all the trainings we do with

         13  providers about a number of subjects, since we are a

         14  reproductive health clinic, you're talking about sex

         15  and sexuality, sexually transmitted diseases, all of

         16  those things are certainly affected by culture and

         17  attitude, and all of our trainings include a

         18  cultural competency component, cultural sensitivity,

         19  which is vitally important to discussing all of

         20  those issues.

         21                 MS. ROTTENBERG:  I would also add hat

         22  the Department of Health does routine surveillance

         23  of potential injury in their all -- about 20 or 21,

         24  80% of the treated and released cases in New York

         25  City and they should have information on that.  So
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          2  that's something that could be collected if it's

          3  still being collected.  That's my last recollection

          4  of it.  That's a question that could be asked of the

          5  Department of Health and also HHC, at least in terms

          6  of the screening for their domestic violence

          7  questions.

          8                 MS. POLLAK:  Hi.  Tamara Pollak from

          9  the Alliance.

         10                 I think the other piece to add is

         11  that we're hearing that we are going to be able to

         12  garner some of that data from the studies that are

         13  done.  There is not enough screening and assessment

         14  going on in New York City to actually give you a

         15  picture.  We don't know who those 78% are, that's an

         16  estimate.  It's our best guess.  But we don't have

         17  enough surveillance going on around rape in New York

         18  City to give you a good answer to that question.

         19                 And in addition to that, I think

         20  another really important thing that was included in

         21  how to design these training programs and how to

         22  design a screening so that it is culturally

         23  sensitive, and that we're able to broach in our

         24  education, in advocacy, reaching other communities,

         25  is that this universal screening needs to be

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  monitored and we need to evaluate whether the

          3  questions are actually getting answers that we need,

          4  whether our education is effective.

          5                 I think whatever community we go

          6  into, we're going to have to work with that

          7  community in focus groups and with advocates from

          8  within that community to focus our questions, focus

          9  our intervention, our referrals and our overall

         10  education in sensitizing people that they can use

         11  their health care system to get help for this

         12  problem.  I think it's a great question, a really

         13  important concern and another reason why we need to

         14  develop screening.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all

         16  very much. I want to thank you for taking all the

         17  time you took to prepare all this testimony and

         18  information for us.  Thank you in advance for the

         19  time we'll take of yours in the future, because you

         20  might have noticed in the beginning of the meeting,

         21  I already volunteered all of you, without asking any

         22  of you, to help DOH and HHC.  So, thank you.

         23                 Our final witness is going to be

         24  Jeannette Kossuth- I'm sorry if I'm mispronouncing

         25  that- from the New York City Gay and Lesbian Anti-
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          2  Violence Project.

          3                 MS. KOSSUTH:  Thank you, Council

          4  members and Chair Quinn.  My name is Jeannette

          5  Kossuth and I'm here representing the New York City

          6  Gay and Lesbian Anti- Violence Project.

          7                 AVP is the crime victims assistance

          8  agency for the lesbian, gay, transgender, bisexual

          9  and HIV- affected communities in New York City.  We

         10  provide free and confidential assistance to

         11  thousands of crime victims each year from all five

         12  boroughs of New York City.  The agency maintains a

         13  24 hour bilingual crisis intervention hotline,

         14  stocked by professional counselors and trained

         15  volunteers. We provide professional and peer support

         16  counseling as well as police, court and social

         17  service advocacy and we conduct training programs

         18  for law enforcement, victim service providers and

         19  hospital personnel.

         20                 In addition to providing direct

         21  services to victims, AVP seeks to change attitudes

         22  that tolerate or instigate hate- motivated violence

         23  through public education campaigns, by working with

         24  organizations, serving other communities victimized

         25  by hate- motivated crime and by organizing the
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          2  lesbian, gay, transgender and bisexual community's

          3  response to violence.

          4                 In the past year, AVP served 121 rape

          5  and sexual assault victims, 35% of whom identify as

          6  female and 65% of whom identify as male.  70% of the

          7  victims we served last year identify as gay,

          8  lesbian, bisexual or transgender.

          9                 The LGTB community has historically

         10  been ignored by mainstream providers of almost every

         11  service readily available to non- LGTB people and,

         12  in fact, to this day victims in the LGTB community

         13  continue to be re victimized by the very

         14  individuals, services, agencies and institutions

         15  designed to protect and defend the most vulnerable

         16  among us.  There remains significant gaps in service

         17  for LGTB victims of rape and sexual assault at all

         18  levels and in all fields where victims and survivors

         19  seek support, both within and without the LGTB

         20  community.

         21                 Within 24 years -- actually, the

         22  agency has 24 years of addressing LGTB rape and

         23  sexual assaults and AVP has unparalleled knowledge

         24  and expertise to educate and assist service

         25  providers in understanding and responding
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          2  appropriately to this population.  We have

          3  successfully developed linkages and alliances with

          4  mainstream and LGTB community service providers, as

          5  well as law enforcement providers and officials, to

          6  facilitate LGTB victims and survivors in securing

          7  appropriate and professional services.

          8                 AVP seeks to expand the ability of

          9  existing systems and supports to provide appropriate

         10  services to LGTB rape and sexual assault victims and

         11  survivors.  And to that end, we actively work in

         12  alliance with rape crisis programs citywide,

         13  training health care providers and law enforcement

         14  personnel and assisting in developing policies and

         15  protocols and providing case consultation.

         16                 AVP's efforts are geared to ensure

         17  that other professionals and crime victim services

         18  and supports are LGTB friendly and aware and are

         19  respectful and effective in serving members of this

         20  community.

         21                 AVP does outreach to develop

         22  additional resources for the LGTB community and

         23  conducts full staff and other trainings, clinical

         24  workshops, technical assistance and provides other

         25  services and supports to address and rectify
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          2  existing gaps in service.

          3                 We at the Anti- Violence Project

          4  strongly urge that screening for sexual violence in

          5  primary care settings in New York City include

          6  awareness and understanding of the needs of all

          7  victims of sexual violence, including gay, lesbian,

          8  bisexual and transgender members of our community.

          9  AVP supports every effort the City Council will make

         10  toward ensuring that comprehensive rape and sexual

         11  assault screening is not only mandated but is

         12  appropriately available to any and all victims so

         13  that anyone in need of such services will be treated

         14  with the utmost dignity, respect, sensitivity and

         15  professionalism at the time of their greatest

         16  trauma, panic and vulnerability.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  You

         18  know, one of the things when DOH and HHC were

         19  testifying that I had noted, not on the record but

         20  in my mind to follow up on, was to look at presently

         21  what HHC is using for domestic violence and what DOH

         22  is using in the STD clinics.  I made a note that I

         23  wanted to really look at how the questions were

         24  phrased because a problem frequently when medical

         25  professionals ask questions relating to sex in any

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  way, whether someone is actually sexually active,

          3  even before you get to the issue of whether you're

          4  trying to identify sexual violence is frequently

          5  those questions are asked with the assumption that

          6  the patient is heterosexual, which adds the

          7  additional burden on the patient at a particularly

          8  vulnerable moment of disclosing their sexual

          9  orientation to a health care provider who has just

         10  probably, inadvertently, sent the message that they

         11  are not going to be comfortable with that because

         12  they assumed the patient was heterosexual. So when

         13  we have our follow- up meetings and discussions and

         14  review of materials, one thing this Committee is

         15  going to particularly be looking for is how

         16  questions are phrased, how things are worded and

         17  whether they're in a way that is inclusive to make

         18  it easier, though it's never easy for an LGBT person

         19  to feel comfortable in this context and setting.

         20                 I want to thank you for your

         21  testimony.  And again, also, like I did with the

         22  other folks, in advance for taking up your time in

         23  the future in our follow- up meetings and

         24  discussions.

         25                 MS. KOSSUTH:  Thank you, Chair Quinn.
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          2    You know, one of the things that I wanted to

          3  mention in light of even in hospital settings, what

          4  we have found is that many cases men, whether

          5  they're heterosexual or gay, is that they will come

          6  in for treatment but they will not mention that they

          7  have been assaulted.  They will come in for the

          8  physical consequences of the assault and, in many

          9  cases, will not reveal the fact that they have been

         10  sexually assaulted.

         11                 And there were studies done.  There

         12  was one study done in the early '90s, I can give you

         13  the specifics, in which 42% of physicians surveyed

         14  stated that they were uncomfortable in treating or

         15  addressing issues of alternate sexuality, LGTB-type

         16  issues.  And there was a study of the gay, there was

         17  a survey done of gay and lesbian physicians, the

         18  organization is called Gay and Lesbian Medical

         19  Association, that was done in the mid '90s, who had

         20  67% of the respondents said that they had seen cases

         21  in which gay, lesbian and particularly transgender

         22  patients had received substandard care because of

         23  the homophobia of the care providers in that

         24  setting.  So I really do, I'm very grateful for the

         25  attention that will be paid to this issue and I'm
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          2  happy to help in any way and I'm sure the agency is.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          5  used to be the Executive Director of the New York

          6  City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project, so even

          7  if they didn't want to, they would have to.  But I

          8  know they do, and it's just -- I know from the

          9  little bit, I was not a counselor, but from the

         10  little bit of interaction I had with some of the

         11  survivors and folks we worked with at AVP, I have --

         12  I know how challenging and difficult it is, but I

         13  have just a tremendous amount of respect for all of

         14  you who have testified before us today as providers

         15  and advocates in this field.  You know, one of my

         16  most accomplishments I am most proud of is having

         17  been able to have assisted a woman who was a victim

         18  of sexual assault who came to the Anti- Violence

         19  Project who is now herself a staff member at the

         20  Anti Violence Project.  So you really all do a

         21  difficult, challenging, but certain God's work every

         22  day.  So thank you for giving us your expertise and

         23  experience.

         24                 We have a final question from Council

         25  Member Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          3  You mentioned that screening being mandated at the

          4  initial health visit.  Is that what you meant to

          5  say, or only when it's requested?

          6                 MS. KOSSUTH:  Screening?  I think one

          7  of the issues --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You said --

          9  in your last paragraph you mentioned about

         10  comprehensive rape and sexual assault screening

         11  should not -- is not only mandated. In other words,

         12  you want it to be mandated that we have that done,

         13  but I wanted to know when can that be done?  Is that

         14  the initial or when it's requested or if there's a

         15  suspect?

         16                 MS. KOSSUTH:  Well, I think that that

         17  was actually spoken to very well by the speakers who

         18  presented earlier.  We really want to think of it in

         19  terms of, in terms of how screeners are trained

         20  sensitively.  We don't necessarily want to barge in

         21  in any set of circumstances and ask questions that

         22  are going to be invasive or intrusive. But in the

         23  same way that these questionnaires are attempting to

         24  be developed that would address the question of

         25  sexual violence for any individual, it would be in
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          2  that context.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          4  My last question is in light of the fact that some

          5  folks in that community may not be open, wouldn't

          6  that be a problem for the physician to be really

          7  prying into their affair because they're not out

          8  open and they feel that intimidated when that is --

          9  they're being asked to answer questions.

         10                 MS. KOSSUTH:  Well, I think one of

         11  the most important things to remember is that though

         12  perhaps I think the statistic is 65% of men who are

         13  assaulted are gay.  95% of rapists are heterosexual

         14  men.  So the assault is not about sexuality, the

         15  assault is about physical violence, it's about

         16  perpetrating humiliation.  So to ask any individual

         17  if they have been sexually assaulted is not to ask

         18  them about their sexual activity or their

         19  orientation, it's to ask them about what type of

         20  violence has been perpetrated against them.  And I

         21  think that that's a very -- I'm very glad you asked

         22  the question because I think it's a very important

         23  distinction.  Rape is not about sexuality, it's

         24  about violence and it's about humiliation.  And

         25  anyone can be violated and humiliated, men, women
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          2  and children.

          3  The predominant perpetrator -- the predominant

          4  numbers we have on perpetrators is that they are

          5  heterosexual men, not necessarily gay men, even

          6  though gay men are more likely to be victimized.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  I

          8  agree with that.  What I was also trying to bring

          9  out is that the fact that the victim may not want to

         10  expose themselves, that they are gay.  They may

         11  refuse to answer these questions because the

         12  questions may eventually lead to the fact that are

         13  you someone who's gay already.  They may not want to

         14   --

         15                 MS. KOSSUTH:  That's a concern.  It's

         16  a legitimate concern.  We frequently get -- we are

         17  frequently referred men who are heterosexual men to

         18  the Anti- Violence Project because there is no,

         19  because there are very limited services and

         20  resources for men who have been sexually hurt   --

         21  sexually assaulted.  And in many cases, it becomes a

         22  barrier for them if they think that the only place

         23  they can go for care or for assistance is to a gay

         24  identified agency.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.
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          2                 MS. KOSSUTH:  But I think that if the

          3  questions are worded sensitively, and if the person

          4  is asked about assault, you know, hopefully if their

          5  concern is their health and their safety and they're

          6  concerned about HIV, prophylaxis or anything else,

          7  the question doesn't necessarily have to be asked

          8  what their sexual orientation is.  It's more what

          9  kind of violence has been perpetrated against this

         10  individual.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         13  much. Again, I want to thank the folks from HHC and

         14  DOH and all the advocates.  I just want to remind

         15  folks this is one of a series of hearings that are

         16  going to be happening in the Council on the issue of

         17  sexual violence and rape and sexual assault.

         18                 This hearing is adjourned.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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